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Activities of the Centre will be expanded

due to the large challenges facing Bank

BTB. Last year, we generally completed

the development of the minimum sufficient

customer base, for both active and passive

operations. This allowed creating an “inter-

nal growth potential” and assigning tasks

related to structuring and expanding our

work.

This year we have focused on the develop-

ment of retail operations to increase the ver-

satility of our banking activities. In 2012, we

as Bank BTB will focus on two general areas

of activities that are interrelated and com-

plement each other, i.e. on supporting small

and medium enterprises and developing

retail services for individual customers. 

SMEs and the retail business are worked

through as two general projects, which

include the generation of specific tools, the

development of a set of operating proce-

dures and training of staff specifically adapt-

ed to the set goals. Bank, in particular, plans

to open specialized branches to work with

SMEs and provide services to individuals.

We believe that the support of partners and

customers will allow us to achieve the

expected success in these destinations, to

improve service quality and enhance our

own growth opportunities. We hope that our

partners, customers and friends will contin-

ue their active co-operation with us, as they

did a year earlier. 

Sincerely yours,

Emil Rzayev

Chairman of the Management Board
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Dear partners, customers and colleagues

As the Chairman of the Management Board of Bank BTB, I am happy, proud and thankful for our suc-

cessful cooperation in 2011. Our interaction allowed the bank in the first full year of operations to imple-

ment all its strategic objectives and to create a basis for future growth, despite the negative externalities

of the market. 

In 2011, Bank BTB had its first big success in the financial market, rated among the leading twenty

banks in Azerbaijan in terms of net profit. With yet a modest size, the bank was actively reducing the

gap between itself and credit institutions that had existed for decades, which means loyalty to our mar-

keting strategy and the effectiveness of customer service. 

Remaining committed to the strategic goal of establishing a universal bank, BTB Bank in 2011 placed

its stake on improving the quality of staff and developing a highly skilled team of professionals able not

only to solve tactical problems, but also to regenerate for the future development. 

Own training centre created for this purpose allows the bank to be independent of the labour market

supply, and train its own staff. This approach, although it creates some temporary restrictions for the

market expansion and development of instrumentation, switches the bank to a more flexible and inno-

vative base through prevalence in our team of young people who are more open to innovations. A pro-

fessional growing up in the bank gets into the very philosophy of its operations, the philosophy of “inter-

nal growth”, i.e. growth through internal generation of capacity and capability. 
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However, its growth rate (9.4%) was still below

the transition to non-oil cycle, i.e. 10-12% annual-

ly for 5-10 years. 

Agreements for transit of Azerbaijani gas through

Turkey to Europe were signed last year. This

opened up opportunities for investment decision

on the stage of full development of Shah Deniz

giant gas condensate field in the Azerbaijani sec-

tor of the Caspian Sea. The stage with invest-

ment worth of $ 50 billion, along with the discov-

eries of new offshore gas fields could give a start

to the gas business cycle of the national economy.

However, the investment decision has been post-

poned to 2013.

Equal opportunities of all development vectors in

the absence of clear advantages of any one of

them led to the investment phase of the national

economy. Instability and falling interest rates on

world capital markets have only encouraged this

process. 

As always, the investment phase was accompa-

nied by institutional changes, i.e. active reforms

in the insurance sector, stock market and its insti-

tutions, and by the development of e-government

services. The banking sector was somewhat aloof

from these reforms. The Central Bank of

Azerbaijan has made only one revolutionary step,

i.e. shifted interbank foreign exchange transac-

tions to the Bloomberg trading system. Even rais-

ing the refinancing rate to 5.25% was generally

consistent with the trend in 2010. The regulator

also refrained from tough actions against the

banks not conforming to the specified norms.

Having gained the opportunity to catch its breath

after a wave of demands for repayment of money

from external partners, the banking sector has

established a number of records. 

Bank investment in the country’s economy for

the first time exceeded the psychological level of

$1 billion, making 897 million AZN. Commercial
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Volatile external market environment and the

debt problems of the leading powers and blocs

could not hold the progressive development of

the Azerbaijani economy in 2011. National econ-

omy was clearly in the investment phase of the

economic cycle, which in Azerbaijan, as well as in

most of the “raw material” economies, took 10 to

15 years. 

Nominal GDP reached a record high of 50.069

billion AZN. Domestic trade turnover rose to

21.778 billion AZN. Real GDP growth on the for-

mal level was 0.1%. Consumer price inflation of

7.9% and capital investment of 12.776 billion

AZN. All signs of the investment phase of the

economic cycle were present.

In 2011, the oil cycle of the Azerbaijani economy

formally ended. Oil production fell by 10%, and

the long-term forecast of the level of its produc-

tion was reduced in the same proportions. From

that time onwards, the task was to maintain the

level of production, and not the growth of the oil

sector. 

Actually the oil cycle that ended back in 2009 was

de jure finalised last year. For Azerbaijan it left

behind $ 17.144 billion current account surplus in

the balance of payments according to the last year

end results, strategic currency reserves of over $

40 billion, and foreign debt not exceeding 7% of

GDP. However, GDP per capita was just over $ 7

thousand, which was not consistent with the

objective of bringing the country to the upper

level of moderately developed countries. 

Oil development path could not provide more,

and in 2011, Azerbaijan found itself in a situation

of equal opportunities for choosing a new eco-

nomic cycle. 

Non-oil investment increased by 39.4% to 9.811

billion AZN or 76.8% of all capital investments.

Non-oil GDP for the first time in history reached

a volume of 21.974 million AZN (43.9% of GDP).
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Table 1. Banking sector depth - million AZN

Month GDP Banks’ Assets

January 3442,5 13133.9

February 6711,3 13157.7

March 10421,1 12631.8

April 13714,9 12751.8

May 17596,6 12972.0

June 22516,5 13141.1

July 26502,3 13277.0

August 30668,8 13302.8

September 34583,1 13567.6

October 40690,0 13503.0

November 45476,6 13664.7

December 50069,0 14259.2

Source: Fineko AIA



banks have become the third investor in the

country after the corporate sector (6.095 billion

AZN) and the state budget (5.038 billion AZN).

Given the credits to the real sector, which grew to

9.950 billion AZN, the banks have taken the posi-

tion of the major donor of economic develop-

ment. In fact, the objectives of the reform initia-

ted by the Central Bank back in 1995 have been

achieved: national banks become able to finance

any economic project.

The new state of the banking system was based

on the active mobilization of the domestic

resources. That caused an increase in bank assets

to 13.664 billion AZN, deposit base to 9.447 bil-

lion AZN, including retail deposits to 4.119 bil-

lion AZN. At the same time, the investment focus

has constrained increasing profitability - only

141.3 million AZN compared to the record of 253

million AZN in 2009 - and the issue of overdue

loans (663.8 million AZN or 6.4% of the loan port-

folio). Banks also failed to keep a record 2.352 bil-

lion capitalization on December 1, which was

only 2.118 billion AZN last year. 

Given the lack of mobilization of internal

resources, the concentration of capital in the

banking system continued to grow. In these tough

competition conditions, Bank BTB OJSC, for

which the year 2011 was the first full year of ope-

ration on the market, continued to follow its mis-

sion and strategy.
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Table 2: Leading 20 banks in Azerbaijan in terms of net profit during 2011

Ranking Name of Bank Net profit 

(thousand AZN)

1 IBA 36 867,34

2 Bank of Baku 26 862,87

3 Xalq Bank 25 758,25

4 AccessBank 17 532,39

5 PASHA Bank 12 579,16

6 ExpressBank 11 522,91

7 Bank Respublika 10 716,01

8 UniBank 9 261,32

9 Yapi Kredi Bank 7 876,13

10 Mugan Bank 6 149,93

11 Texnika Bank 6 112,37

12 Silk way bank 5 058,39

13 AzerbaijanSenayeBank 3 789,76

14 Turan bank 3 610,92

15 AtaBank 3 202,46

16 NIKOIL 2 899,10

17 Demirbank 2 514,35

18 AFB 1 699,44

19 BTB Bank 1 634,75

20 Gunay Bank 1 454,04

Source: Fineko AIA
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Bank BTB was founded in 2010 (li-

cense number 254) and is a universal

credit and financial institution provi-

ding a full range of banking services,

including corporate, retail and ban-

king, lending to individuals residing

in the cities of Baku, Sumgait, Khir-

dalan and Absheron Peninsula.

Main advantages

Following a well-focused strategy

allows the bank even in the current

competitive market to fully realize its

potential through effective use of its

own capabilities and experience.

Key factors ensuring the bank’s com-

petitive ability are

• a strong management team; 

• significant customer portfolio all

over the local market; 

• developed competence in servi-

cing key customer groups: large

and medium-sized corporate cus-

tomers, the premium segment of

individuals, corporate staff; 

• balanced regional development

policy supported by an efficient

cost management system and a

high proportion of the branch

network in the bank’s business; 

• a high rated risk management

system; 

• relatively low level of depen

dence on international financial

markets, diversified resource

base.

Bank BTB traditionally pays special

attention to maintaining the high qu-

ality of assets, effective Risk and cost

management. 
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Bank Strategy



The tactical objectives of the Bank for the year

2011 were:

• introduction of the bank to customers and

society;

• transition of corporate governance from the

classical scheme to the German-Dutch

model;

• increase the level of internal corporate 

culture;

• creation and strengthening of technical

resources;

• ensuring internal and external security, 

establishing a communication network;

• generation of a primary capital base.

In 2012, the bank started solving the main prob-

lem, i.e. radical change in the structure of the cus-

tomer base. While 80% of the transactions were

previously in the corporate sector, and only 20%

in the retail segment, a mirror change in the cus-

tomer base is planned in 2012-2013: 80% of ope-

rations will provided by the retail business and

only 20% by corporate customers. To do this, the

bank within the same period of time is ready to

enter the market as a “donor”, i.e. an organization

able and willing to provide long-term and low-

cost resources. This does not exclude the involve-

ment of foreign investors.

Bank understands that to solve the problem it

should make a qualitative and quantitative leap

during a couple of years. 

19

ANNUAL REPORT 2010

Bank BTB strategic plan for 2011-2015 is based

on its basic setting, i.e. the balance between the

increase in the cost of business (investments) and

its own adequacy to the extensive retail demand

(SMEs and individuals). 

According to the strategy, the bank has become one

of the leading financial institutions of the country

by the end of 2015. Average annual growth is

planned to be at 72-100%, depending on the year. 

In accordance with the plan, the bank is working

on the development of corporate governance sys-

tem to the highest standards and enhancement of

its own adequacy to the requirements of investors

and financial markets. This implies the creation

of internal policies and a corporate governance

system; effective management of human

resources, a system for increasing the quality of

financial management and information technolo-

gy, quality system for managing the risks of assets

and liabilities operations. 

The basic platform in this case is still the format of

a “universal bank” capable of providing more rapid,

affordable and quality services. In its daily activities,

the Bank is guided by the following philosophy:

• serving the needs of the economy 

of Azerbaijan;

• social responsibility;

• respect for national legislation;

• taking care of staff;

• compliance with the growing demands 

of customers in such a way that they 

are pleased with any communication 

with the bank;

• reliability;

• transparency.

The bank considers its employees the main asset,

and views as its mission to constantly develop

their motivation and social status.
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Chart 1. The change of clients’ database structure
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Corporate Governance



In 2011, Bank BTB decided to thoroughly change its own man-

agement system. Reasons were the active development of the

bank, which allowed modifying the corporate system based on

accumulated practice, and the declared goal of transition to the

Dutch-German system of corporate governance. It resulted in the

complexity of the management system, while maintaining flexibil-

ity and speed of decision-making.

The bank redefined and redistributed the powers of the

Management Board and its chairman. Under the new structure, the

chairman of the bank’s management board has retained the func-

tions of the senior executive and curator of operations, excluding

small and medium enterprise. Three deputies of the Chairman

under the new corporate scheme have assumed the supervision of

the “foremost” areas of activities, i.e. operational activities, admin-

istrative and legal support, and retail operations.

From the administrative standpoint, the bank did not bring togeth-

er SMEs and retail operations. That means that likewise, function-

ally it does not view the retail operations retail and small and medi-

um business as a whole. This approach is now out of fashion among

banks seeking to grow up to the leaders of the banking system.

Even potentially large banks consider SMEs to be the continuation

of the retail operations. For Bank BTB this is a separate business

line. Theoretically, this should retain its proximity to the customer,

but imposes higher demands on the front office employees, where

customers require complex synthetic products. Further structuring

of administrative subdivisions has also taken place. Departments

have been divided into divisions. In this case, structures exotic

enough for local banks have come into existence, such as human

resources development department or a group of in-house pro-

grammers. Breakdown of functions is also quite interesting in

terms of setting and achieving the goals of Bank BTB. Thus, the

mortgage lending and funding from the National Fund for

Entrepreneurship Support have been separated into the special

projects department. Most local banks would put the mortgage into

a separate division or even a department, while relating the servic-

es associated with the National Fund for Entrepreneurship

Support to the SME department or corporate customers division.

Bank BTB has somewhat stressed that these areas are of a practi-

cal value, and it is a declaration of the market policy. 
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Internal structuring 
and functional focus changes
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Structure

IT Security Division

Banking Security Division

Security Department

Small and Medium-Sized
Business Financial Product Credits

Management Division

Small and Medium-Sized
Business Credits Control, Administration

and Support Division

Small and Medium-Sized
Business Standart Product Credits

Management Division

Small and Medium-Sized
Business Development

Department

IT Committee

ALCO

Loan Committee

Risk Management Committee

Internal Committees

Legal Proceedings Division

International Law Division

Legal Support Division

Legal Department

Human Resources Department Programming Division

Financial Monitoring Division

Credit Control Division

Monitoring Division

Risk Management Department

Supervisory Board

Chairman of the Management Board

General Meeting of Shareholders

Front Office

Partner Relations Division

Troubled Loans Division

Micro-Credits Division

Consumer Loans Division

General Services Division

Archives Division

Secretariat

Administrative Department

Advertising Division

Public Relations Division

Marketing, Public
Relations and Advertising

Department

Process Management Division

Product Development Division

Retail Product
Development and Process
Management Department

Internal Audit Department

Audit Committee

Treasury and Cash Division

Retail Banking Division

Corporate Banking Division

Operational Department

Treasury Division

Clearance Division

Finance Department

Bank Card Operations Division

Bank Card Department

Corporate Customers Division

Portfolio Management Division

Loan Department

First Deputy Chairman 
of the Management Board

Deputy Chairman 
of the Management Board

Information Technologies
Department

Retail Business
Administration Department

Retail Sales Management
Department

Human Resource

Management Division

Legal Processes Management

Division

Troubled Loans Management

Division

Human Resources

Development Division

Human Resources

Management Division

Acquiring and Technical

Support Division

Budget Planning and

Financial Control Division

Accounting, Bookkeeping and

Reporting Division

Small and Medium-Sized
Business Management Division

Special Projects Financing

Division

Valuables Transportation and

Security Division

Systems, Networks and

Technical Support Division



Rafiyev Vugar
Member of the Management Board

Born on 06 July 1978 in Baku. In 2001, graduated from Baku State
University with a master’s degree in international economic relations.
13 years of successful experience in the banking sector. Married, has 2
children
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Pashali Jeyhun
Member of the Supervisory Board

Born on 08 June 1961 in Baku. In 1984, graduated from the Moscow
State University named after Lomonosov. In 1997, graduated from the
Baku State University. Legal expert. Has vast experience in banking
sector, worked as a Chief Counsel in a number of banks, held the posi-
tions of the Deputy Chairman of the Management Board at Nikoyl
Azerbaijan Investment Company, Deputy Chairman of the
Management Board at Most Bank Azerbaijan Joint Stock Bank, and
worked as the Director of Bazis Law Firm. Public notary since 2010.
Married, has 2 children.
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Supervisory Board Management Board

Salamov Asim 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Born on 06 August 1961 in Baku. Graduated from two higher education
institutions, the Azerbaijan Institute of Oil and Chemistry in 1983, and
the Azerbaijan State University of Economics in 2002. He held respon-
sible positions in a number of organisations, including the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board at Trade and Industry CB, Deputy Chairman of
the Management Board and member of the Supervisory Board at
Amrahbank OJSC, Deputy Director of the Licensing Department and
Bank Operations Regulation Department of the National Bank of the
Republic of Azerbaijan, and member of the Board of Directors of ADA
Ticaret CJSC. Married, has 3 children.

Mammadov Hafiz
Member of the Supervisory Board

Born on 02 December 1964 in Nakhchivan Autonomous Republic. In
1985, graduated from the Azerbaijan Institute of Economics. Started
his working career as an economist at the Ministry of Local Industry of
Nakhchivan Autonomous Soviet Socialist Republic. Has been engaged
in entrepreneurial activities since 1988. Over these years, he has made
numerous achievements, gained extensive reputation among the busi-
ness community in Azerbaijan, and closely participated in implemen-
tation of important projects. Married, has 3 children.

Rzayev Emil
Chairman of the Management Board

Born on 02 August 1977 in Baku. In 2000, graduated from the
Azerbaijan State Economic University with a master’s degree. In 2001,
graduated from the Higher Social and Political College as a lawyer. 15
years of successful experience in the banking sector, of them 8 years in
leadership positions. Married, has one child.

Gojayev Samir 
Deputy Chairman of the Management Board

Born on 07 November 1977 in Baku. In 2000, graduated from the
Azerbaijan State Economic University with a master’s degree. 11 years
of successful experience in the banking sector, of them 5 years in lead-
ership positions. Married, has one child.
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still in the process of building-up, and here the

achieved levels are important, rather than their

rate of growth. Thus, the bank set out to reach 30-

50 million AZN in assets at the end of 2011, but

achieved 44.085 million AZN and the 35th place

in the market. The loan portfolio was expected at

around 20-30 million AZN, but the actually

reached level was 35.83 million AZN (also the

35th place). The deposit portfolio forecasted at

10-20 million AZN reached 17.745 million AZN

(deposits of individuals and corporate entities),

not including other banks and financial institu-

tions.

Bank BTB demonstrated the best results in terms

of profitability. Thus, in terms of return on assets

(ROA) equal to 3.71%, it was ranked among the

top five, coming the fifth best after Bank of Baku

(8.52%), Express Bank (6.69%), SW Bank (6.38%)

and Gunay Bank (3.87%). The target for the year

(3.1%) was also exceeded.

In terms of return on equity (ROE) the indicator

was less (13.62%), but still higher than the

expected level of 5.4%, which also allowed Bank

BTB to stay in the top twenty of the country’s

credit institutions.
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Last year was extremely active and productive for

Bank BTB, despite the debt crisis in the U.S. and

Europe and the threat of returning global reces-

sion. Bank exceeded virtually all of its own targets

set for the last year. 

In 2011, Bank BTB for the first time was ranked

among the country’s top twenty banks for one of

the indicators. With a net profit of 1634.75 thou-

sand AZN it became the 19th bank in

Azerbaijan. 

This indicator is more than important, as virtual-

ly for all other parameters BTB Bank was still in

the thirties of credit institutions. Even on the

level of income (7.722 million AZN) it was only

the 29th bank in Azerbaijan, and the level of

expenditure - the 21st. 

The last year profit has allowed the bank to

implement the first recapitalization in the bank’s

history in 2012, increasing the authorized capital

from 12 million to 13.6 million AZN. This is cru-

cial, because only the overall capital target was

not achieved last year. Bank planned to reach a

level of 20-30 million AZN, but in practice it

turned out to be only 14.103 million AZN or the

30th place among the largest banks in Azerbaijan

in terms of the overall capital. 

In the case of Bank BTB the growth rate of its

parameters is not objective, because the bank is
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Chart 2. Number of Customers
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Being a young credit institution with capital near

the minimum regulatory requirement, the bank

was forced to give priority to short term active

operations, which somewhat was not consistent

with the main trend of the banking sector, active-

ly shifting toward long-term financing. However,

this general “migration” in the direction of long-

term loans has created a definite shortage in the

short-term money market, of which Bank BTB

took advantage, dramatically increasing the vol-

ume of lending and obtaining a corporate cus-

tomer base. 

The turning point in the development of the

bank was February last year. While prior to 01

March 2011, the bank’s deposit base expansion

dynamics prevailed over the growth of its loan

portfolio, then after that date the expansion rate

of active operations has become predominant.

While during January and February the bank’s

deposit base increased 3.6 times, exceeding the

psychological level of 10 million AZN (actually

13.842 million AZN), the loan portfolio increased

7.3 times, overpassing 20 million AZN (24.947

million AZN). With minor variations, this trend

continued until the end of the year. Overall, the

last year’s loan portfolio increased 13 times, and

the deposit base only 3.1 times.

As a result, at the end of the year the loan portfo-

lio amounted to 35.83 million AZN, of which

14.99 million AZN were provided by the loans to

the trade and services sector. Another 6.3 million

AZN were the loans to the financial sector.

In this case, the corporate sector has played a

minimum role in the expansion of the bank’s

deposit base. It accounted for deposits of 4.075

million AZN, all of which were balances on the

current accounts.

According to the plans for 2012, the bank has no

plans related to active raising funds from the cor-

porate sector, but it will have to maintain a high

level of active transactions in that sector. This is

still its core business. 
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Corporate Business

Chart 3. Corporate Business
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In 2011, individuals ensured virtually all success

of Bank BTB. For a young lending institution the

difficulties with funds raising are traditional,

because opportunities for attracting funds from

abroad are still not open due to lack of operational

and credit history. Raising funds in the domestic

market was also limited due to the fact that last

year the country’s leading banks stepped up their

own operations in the retail market. Thus, the

region’s largest bank, i.e. “International Bank of

Azerbaijan” OJSC and UniBank joined the strug-

gle for retail customers. 

This restrained Bank BTB’s progress in expanding

the deposit base. Deposits of individuals at the

level of 13.67 million AZN are clearly not the level

that would be expected under the rates on deposits

that bank offered. It is true that it did not conduct-

ed active advertising either, and the said level can

be considered objective and even effective.

Shortage of deposits did not affect the active

operations in the retail sector - the bank was

forced to grab those sectors that had not yet been

affected by tough expansion of the leading banks.

As a result, loans to individuals exceeded 14.536

million AZN. This amounts to almost 40.6% of

the loan portfolio, which is one of the greatest

levels of lending to households in the banking

sector. 

However, here the ratio of the volume of raised

and placed funds in the retail sector is important,

which is not a traditional parameter for the coun-

try’s commercial banks. 

In the case of Bank BTB this ratio is 0.94 - the vol-

ume of loans provided by the bank to the popula-

tion is 6% higher than the total funds raised from

individual customers. De facto, Bank BTB was

almost the only net investor in the household sec-

tor among the country’s credit institutions.

Financing the development and improvement of

social conditions of households (civilian sector) is

the best example of corporate social responsibility,

which any commercial bank could demonstrate.

In most Azerbaijani banks level of raising / plac-

ing funds in the retail sector is greater than 1,

which means that they attract more funds from

population than they invest in it. If we consider

only the deposits (fixed term deposits), which at

Bank BTB amounted to 11.239 million AZN at

the year end, the index will be then equal to 0.77,

almost the best level of integrity and social

responsibility in relation to the individuals in the

sector. 
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Chart 4. Retail Business
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tion and potential consumers. Here, Bank BTB’s

points of sale are very mobile - as the reconstruc-

tions of the subway stations go on they change

their location, and the presence of the bank is not

reduced. Such presence will be retained in the

future. 

In 2012 the bank announced opening of at least

two new branches. Formally, it is a step back in

comparison to the last year, but in fact it is transi-

tion to a new capacity that is associated with

implementation of global “small and medium

enterprises” and “retail operations” projects. One

of the planned branch offices will be a formal

SMEs branch, while the other is going to be a

retail branch. Specialization is rather relative,

since the bank still adheres to versatility of oper-

ations. 

The implementation of the two global projects in

2012 will provide an operational framework for

the development of the branch network in 2013.

That is when the bank will start moving into the

“bedroom” districts of Baku - Bank BTB will

have enough products and services to offer to the

local clientele. 

Currently there are no plans regarding access to

the country’s regions. And the reason is not the

lack of interest in the province and doing busi-

ness over there, but in shortage of highly profes-

sional staff outside the Baku agglomeration. We

have yet to train and motivate them.

In 2011, the Bank actively developed its own

branch network. While at the beginning of the

year Bank BTB had 2 branches in central districts

of Baku, to the year end it already had over 13

points of sale, including five branches and seven

divisions plus head office.

In this case, the effectiveness of the branch net-

work was ideal - almost all of them have crossed

the point of “zero balance” and started yielding

profit to the bank. It rarely happens during the

first year of operation, and in Bank BTB they

rightly believe that it is an indicator of the effec-

tiveness of marketing decisions. 

The bank’s marketing policy in 2011 was simple

and rational: to go where there is a customer. As a

result, the bank did not go beyond the “golden

triangle” of Baku, and actually limited itself by

the presence in three of the capital’s 11 adminis-

trative districts. 

The dynamics of development of the branch net-

work shows that the main customers of Bank

BTB are concentrated in three locations, namely

Sabail, Yasamal and Narimanov districts of Baku.

Last year, only one outgo beyond the “golden tri-

angle” was undertaken: Qum Adasi division in

the suburban Surakhani district and Rabita

branch office in Khatai district were opened.

The main market success of the bank was bring-

ing the retail network into Baku Metro, whose

services are used by the majority of the popula-
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31 December 31 December 

Note 2011 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 6 6,751,879 7,738,791

Due from banks 7 2,560 2,905,843

Loans and advances to customers 8 35,450,422 13,672,921

Intangible assets 9 44,137 35,321

Premises and equipment 9 1,060,917 280,832

Other financial assets 10 7,965 8,361

Other assets 11 78,016 114,443

TOTAL ASSETS 43,395,896 24,756,512

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 12 27,746,831 12,265,362

Other borrowed funds 13 1,635,502 -

Deferred income tax liability 20 117,602 102,993

Other financial liabilities 14 11,882 16,506

Other liabilities 15 26,816 19,183

TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,538,633 12,404,044

EQUITY

Share capital 16 12,000,000 12,000,000

Retained earnings 1,857,263 352,468

TOTAL EQUITY 13,857,263 12,352,468

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 43,395,896 24,756,512

On behalf of the Management Board:

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Chairman of the Management Board Chief Accountant

28 February 2012 28 February 2012

Baku, Azerbaijan Baku, Azerbaijan

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)
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To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Bank “BTB” OJSC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bank “BTB” OJSC (hereinafter referred to as “the

Bank”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2011 and the statement of compre-

hensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a sum-

mary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is nec-

essary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our

audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with eth-

ical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finan-

cial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-

ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the finan-

cial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pur-

pose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluat-

ing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by man-

agement, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of the Bank as of 31 December 2011, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Baku, Republic of Azerbaijan

28 February 2012

BANK “BTB” OJSC

Independent AUDITOR’S REPORT

The notes on pages 45-80 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 40
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Share Retained Total 

Note capital earnings equity

Balance at 1 April 2010 - - -

Share issue 16 12,000,000 - 12,000,000

Net profit - 352,468 352,468

Total comprehensive income for 2010 - 352,468 352,468

Balance at 31 December 2010 12,000,000 352,468 12,352,468

Increase of share capital - - -

Net profit - 1,504,795 1,504,795

Balance at 31 December 2011 12,000,000 1,857,263 13,857,263

On behalf of the Management Board:

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Chairman of the Management Board Chief Accountant

28 February 2012 28 February 2012

Baku, Azerbaijan Baku, Azerbaijan

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

The notes on pages 45-80 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 40

Note 2011 2010

Interest income 17 4,219,803 886,559

Interest expense 17 (1,372,359) (162,406)

Net interest income 2,847,444 724,153

Provision for loan impairment (244,115) (124,434)

Net interest income after provision for loan impairment 2,603,329 599,719

Fee and commission income 18 1,613,412 565,137

Fee and commission expense 18 (205,522) (29,403)

Net gain/(loss) on foreign exchange operations 271,515 (2,789)

Administrative and other operating expenses 19 (2,763,331) (677,203)

Profit before tax 1,519,403 455,461

Income tax expense 20 (14,608) (102,993)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,504,795 352,468

Other comprehensive income for the year - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,504,795 352,468

Earnings per share for profit during the year – 

basic and diluted (expressed in AZN per share): 1,504,795 352,468

Ordinary Shares 21 125.40 29.37

On behalf of the Management Board:

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Chairman of the Management Board Chief Accountant

28 February 2012 28 February 2012

Baku, Azerbaijan Baku, Azerbaijan

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

The notes on pages 45-80 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 40
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BANK “BTB” OJSC

1 Introduction

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards for the year

ended 31 December 2011 for Bank “BTB” OJSC (the “Bank”).

The Bank incorporated and is domiciled in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The Bank is a joint stock company with limited lia-

bilities of shareholders and was set up in accordance with Azerbaijani regulations. 

Principal activity. The Bank’s principal business activity is commercial banking operations within the Republic of

Azerbaijan. The Bank has operated under a full banking license #254 issued by the Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan

(CBA) since 19 March 2010. 

As at 31 December 2011, the Bank had 6 branches and 2 service points within the Republic of Azerbaijan.

Registered address and place of business. The Bank’s registered address is: 4B Parliament Avenue, Yasamal district,

Baku, Azerbaijan Republic.

Presentation currency. These financial statements are presented in Azerbaijani Manats (“AZN”). The Azerbaijani Manat

(“AZN”) is the official currency of Republic of Azerbaijan.

At 31 December 2011, the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency monetary balances was USD 1

= AZN 0.7865 and EUR= AZN 1.0178. 

2 Operating Environment of the Bank

The Republic of Azerbaijan The Republic of Azerbaijan displays certain characteristics of an emerging market, includ-

ing the existence of a currency that is not freely convertible in most countries outside of the Republic of Azerbaijan, relative-

ly low inflation and slow economic growth. The banking sector in the Republic of Azerbaijan is sensitive to adverse fluctua-

tions in confidence and economic conditions. The Azerbaijani economy occasionally experiences falls in confidence in the

banking sector accompanied by reductions in liquidity. For management it is difficult to predict economic trends and devel-

opments in the banking sector and consequently what effect, if any, a deterioration in the liquidity of or confidence in the

Azerbaijani banking system could have on the financial position of the Bank. However, management notes that the Bank has

strong relations with refinancing partners and has not experienced any liquidity difficulties to date.

The tax, currency and customs legislations within the Republic of Azerbaijan are subject to varying interpretations and fre-

quent changes. Furthermore, the need for further developments in the bankruptcy laws, the absence of formalized procedures

for the registration and enforcement of collateral, and other legal and fiscal impediments contribute to the challenges faced by

banks currently operating in the Republic of Azerbaijan. The future operating direction of the Republic of Azerbaijan is large-

ly dependent upon the effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the Government, together

with tax, legal, regulatory, and political developments.

Recent volatility in global and Azerbaijan financial markets. The ongoing global liquidity crisis which commenced in

the middle of 2007 has resulted in, among other things, a lower level of capital market funding, at times much higher than nor-

mal interbank lending rates, and lower liquidity levels across the Republic of Azerbaijan banking sector resulting in a signifi-

cant reduction in the number of new loans and advances made to customers, and higher funding costs where it remains possi-

ble to obtain debt finance from International Institutions or other local banks. The uncertainties in the global financial market,

has also led to bank failures and bank rescues in the United States of America, Western Europe and in Russia. Such circum-

stances could affect the ability of the Bank to obtain new borrowings and re-finance its existing borrowings at terms and con-

ditions similar to those applied to earlier transactions. The borrowers of the Bank may also be affected by the lower liquidity

situation which could in turn impact their ability to repay their outstanding loans. Deteriorating operating conditions for bor-

rowers may also have an impact on Management’s cash flow forecasts and assessment of the impairment of financial and non-

financial assets. To the extent that information is available, Management has reflected revised estimates of expected future

cash flows in their impairment assessments.

It is impossible for Management to reliably estimate the effects on the Bank’s financial position of any further deteriora-

tion in the liquidity of the financial markets and the increased volatility in the currency and equity markets. Management

believes it is taking all the necessary measures to support the sustainability and development of the Bank’s business in the cur-

rent circumstances.

Notes Year ended Year ended

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit before income tax 1,519,401 455,461

Adjustments for:

Provision for impairment losses on interest bearing assets 8 244,116 124,434

Depreciation and amortization expense 9 296,629 10,587

Translation (gain)/loss on foreign exchange operations (271,514) -

Change in interest accruals, net (78,017) 14,246

Cash flows from operating activities before changes 

in operating assets and liabilities 1,710,615 604,728

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:

Minimum reserve deposit with NBAR (313,287) (46,950)

Due from banks 7 2,903,283 (2,905,843)

Loans to customers 8 (21,837,737) (13,733,601)

Other financial assets 10 396 (8,361)

Other assets 11 36,442 (114,443)

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:

Customer accounts 12 14,308,876 12,187,361

Borrowings 1,631,802 -

Other financial liabilities 14 (4,624) 16,506

Other liabilities 15 1,210,178 19,184

Cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities before taxation (354,056) (3,981,419)

Income tax paid - -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities (354,056) (3,981,419)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of premises and equipment 9 (954,391) (291,340)

Purchases of intangible assets 9 (13,338) (35,400)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities (967,729) (326,740)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Issue of ordinary share capital 16 - 12,000,000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities - 12,000,000

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash eq. 21,586 -

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS (1,300,199) 7,691,841

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 7,691,841 -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 6 6,391,642 7,691,841

On behalf of the Management Board:

________________________________ ________________________________ 

Chairman of the Management Board Chief Accountant

28 February 2012 28 February 2012

Baku, Azerbaijan Baku, Azerbaijan

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

The notes on pages 45-80 form an integral part of these financial statements. The Independent Auditors’ Report is on page 40
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivalents include all interbank placements

with original maturities of less than three months. Funds restricted for a period of more than three months on origination are

excluded from cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost.

Mandatory cash balances with the CBA. Mandatory cash balances in AZN and foreign currency held with the CBA are

carried at amortized cost and represent non-interest bearing mandatory reserve deposits, which are not available to finance the

Bank’s day-to-day operations, and hence are not considered as part of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash

flow statement.

Due from other banks. Amounts due from other banks are recorded when the Bank advances money to counterparty

banks with no intention of trading the resulting unquoted non-derivative receivable due on fixed or determinable dates.

Amounts due from other banks are carried at amortized cost.

Loans and advances to customers. Loans and advances to customers are recorded when the Bank advances money to

purchase or originate an unquoted non-derivative receivable from a customer due on fixed or determinable dates and has no

intention of trading the receivable. Loans and advances to customers are carried at amortized cost. 

Impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss when

incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset and

which have an impact on the amount or timing of the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial

assets that can be reliably estimated. If the Bank determines that no objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred

for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with

similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. The primary factors that the Bank considers

whether a financial asset is impaired is its overdue status and realisability of related collateral, if any. The following other prin-

cipal criteria are also used to determine that there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:

– Any installment is overdue and the late payment cannot be attributed to a delay caused by the settlement systems;

– The borrower experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by the borrower’s financial information that the

Bank obtains;

– The borrower considers bankruptcy or a financial reorganization;

– There is an adverse change in the payment status of the borrower as a result of changes in the national or local economic

conditions that impact the borrower; or

– The value of collateral significantly decreases as a result of deteriorating market conditions.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk

characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indica-

tive of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of

the contractual cash flows of the assets and the experience of management in respect of the extent to which amounts will

become overdue as a result of past loss events and the success of recovery of overdue amounts. Past experience is adjusted on

the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect past periods and to remove

the effects of past conditions that do not exist currently.

If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortized cost are renegotiated or otherwise modified because of finan-

cial difficulties of the borrower or issuer, impairment is measured using the original effective interest rate before the modifica-

tion of terms.

Impairment losses are always recognized through an allowance account to write down the asset’s carrying amount to the

present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the origi-

nal effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateral-

ized financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,

whether or not foreclosure is probable.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an

event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously rec-

ognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account through profit or loss.

Uncollectible assets are written off against the related impairment loss provision after all the necessary procedures to recov-

er the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation. These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) under the historical cost convention, as modified by the initial recognition of financial instru-

ments based on fair value, and by the revaluation of premises and equipment, investment properties, available-for-sale finan-

cial assets and financial instruments categorized as at fair value through profit or loss. The principal accounting policies applied

in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the peri-

ods presented, unless otherwise stated (refer to Note 5).

Financial instruments - key measurement terms. Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at

fair value, or amortized cost as described below. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing par-

ties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair value is the current bid price for financial assets and current asking price for financial

liabilities which are quoted in an active market. For assets and liabilities with offsetting market risks, the Bank may use mid-

market prices as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and apply the bid or asking price to the net

open position as appropriate. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and

regularly available from an exchange or other institution and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market trans-

actions on an arm’s length basis. Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flows models or models based on recent arms

length transactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to fair value certain financial instruments for

which external market pricing information is not available. Valuation techniques may require assumptions not supported by

observable market data. Disclosures are made in these financial statements if changing any such assumptions to a reasonably

possible alternative would result in significantly different profit, income, total assets or total liabilities. 

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at

the time of its acquisition and includes transaction costs. Measurement at cost is only applicable to investments in equity

instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial instru-

ment. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not taken place. Transaction costs

include fees and commissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies

by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums

or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortized cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recognition less any principal

repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred impairment losses. Accrued inter-

est includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any premium or discount to maturity amount

using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and accrued interest expense, including both accrued coupon and

amortized discount or premium (including fees deferred at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included

in the carrying values of related balance sheet items. 

The effective interest method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period so as

to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effec-

tive interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date except for the premi-

um or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not

reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present

value calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective inter-

est rate (refer to income and expense recognition policy). 

Initial recognition of financial instruments. Trading securities, derivatives and other financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair value. All other financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value plus

transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition

is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable

current market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from observ-

able markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market

convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is the date that the Bank commits to deliver

a financial asset. All other purchases are recognized when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instru-

ment. 

BANK “BTB” OJSC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized based on the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific

software. Development costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software controlled by the Bank are

recorded as intangible assets if the inflow of incremental economic benefits exceeding costs is probable. Capitalized costs

include staff costs of the software development team and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. All other costs associ-

ated with computer software, e.g. its maintenance, are expensed when incurred. Capitalized computer software is amortized

on a straight line basis over expected useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

Operating leases. Where the Bank is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards inci-

dental to ownership from the lessor to the Bank, the total lease payments are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis

over the period of the lease. All the operating lease agreements concluded by the Bank are for the next twelve month period,

and operating lease contracts are renewed at the end of the contract period. 

Due to other banks. Amounts due to other banks are recorded when money or other assets are advanced to the Bank by

counterparty banks. The non-derivative liability is carried at amortized cost. If the Bank purchases its own debt, it is removed

from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid is included

in gains or losses arising from retirement of debt.

Customer accounts. Customer accounts are non-derivative liabilities to individuals, state or corporate customers and are

carried at amortized cost.

Income taxes. Income taxes have been provided for in the financial statements in accordance with Azerbaijani legislation

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred

tax and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income except if it is recognized directly in the statement of other

comprehensive income because it relates to transactions that are also recognized, in the same or a different period, directly in

the statement of other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable profits for

the current and prior periods. Taxable profits are based on estimates if financial statements are authorized prior to filing rele-

vant tax returns. Taxes, other than on income, are recorded within administrative and operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and temporary differ-

ences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. In accor-

dance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition

of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects nei-

ther accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax balances are measured at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the bal-

ance sheet date which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax loss carry for-

wards will be utilized. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards are recorded only to

the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available, against which the deductions can be utilized.

Uncertain tax positions. The Bank’s uncertain tax positions are reassessed by management at every balance sheet date.

Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by management as more likely than not to result in addi-

tional taxes being levied if the positions were to be challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based on the inter-

pretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and any known Court or other

rulings on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are recognized based on management’s

best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date.

Dividends. Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which they are declared. Dividends declared after the bal-

ance sheet date and before the financial statements are authorized for issue are disclosed in the subsequent events note. The

statutory accounting reports of the Bank are the basis for profit distribution and other appropriations. Azerbaijani legislation

identifies the basis of distribution as the current year net profit.

Income and expense recognition. Interest income and expense are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income

for all debt instruments on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. This method defers, as part of interest income

or expense, all fees paid or received between the parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,

transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Fees integral to the effective interest rate include origination fees received or paid by the entity relating to the creation or

acquisition of a financial asset or issuance of a financial liability, for example fees for evaluating creditworthiness, evaluating

and recording guarantees or collateral, negotiating the terms of the instrument and for processing transaction documents.

Commitment fees received by the Bank to originate loans at market interest rates are integral to the effective interest rate if it

is probable that the Bank will enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly

after origination. The Bank does not designate loan commitments as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Credit related commitments. The Bank enters into credit related commitments, including letters of credit and financial

guarantees. Financial guarantees represent irrevocable assurances to make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet

its obligations to third parties and carry the same credit risk as loans. Financial guarantees and commitments to provide a loan

are initially recognized at their fair value, which is normally evidenced by the amount of fees received. This amount is amor-

tized on a straight line basis over the life of the commitment, except for commitments to originate loans if it is probable that

the Bank will enter into a specific lending arrangement and does not expect to sell the resulting loan shortly after origination;

such loan commitment fees are deferred and included in the carrying value of the loan on initial recognition. At each balance

sheet date, the commitments are measured at the higher of (i) the remaining unamortized balance of the amount at initial

recognition and (ii) the best estimate of expenditure required settling the commitment at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition of financial assets. The Bank derecognizes financial assets when (a) the assets are redeemed or the rights

to cash flows from the assets otherwise expired or (b) the Bank has transferred the rights to the cash flows from the financial

assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement while (i) also transferring substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the assets or ii) neither transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retain-

ing control. Control is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unre-

lated third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Premises and equipment. Premises are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where

required.

Construction in progress is carried at cost less provision for impairment where required. Cost includes borrowing costs

incurred on specific or general funds borrowed to finance construction of qualifying assets. Upon completion, assets are trans-

ferred to premises and equipment at their carrying amount. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the asset is avail-

able for use.

The costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. The cost of replacing major parts or components

of premises and equipment items are capitalized and the replaced part is retired.

At the end of each reporting period management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of premises and

equipment. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount, which is determined as the higher of

an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the year. An impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed

if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognised in profit or loss for

the year (within other operating income or expenses).

If impaired, premises and equipment are written down to the higher of their value in use and fair value less costs to sell.

The decrease in carrying amount is charged to profit or loss to the extent it exceeds the previous revaluation surplus in equi-

ty. An impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior years is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to

determine the asset’s value in use or fair value less costs to sell.

Gains and losses on disposals determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount are recognized as profit or loss from

disposal of fixed assets.

Depreciation. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other items of premises and equipment is calculated using the

straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as fol-

lows:

Premises 50 years;

Computers and communication equipment 4 to 5 years;

Furniture, fixtures and other 4 to 5 years; and

Vehicles 4 to 5 years.

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Bank would currently obtain from disposal of the asset less

the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

The residual value of an asset is nil if the Bank expects to use the asset until the end of its physical life. The assets’ residual

values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets. All of the Bank’s intangible assets have definite useful life and primarily include capitalized computer

software.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finan-

cial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes

certain judgments, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgments that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a signifi-

cant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Impairment losses on loans and advances. The Bank regularly reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment. In deter-

mining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income the Bank makes judgments

as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from

a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include

observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, or national or

local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based on historical

loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio

when scheduling its future cash flows. 

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed reg-

ularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience. The management considers the impact of

financial crisis on Bank’s customers conservatively during estimation and calculation of loan loss provision. To the extent that

the assessed delay in repayment of principal on 5% of the total loans and advances to customers differs by +/- one month, the

provision would be approximately AZN 9,156 higher or lower.

Tax legislation. Azerbaijani tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations. Refer to Note 20.

Initial recognition of related party transactions. In the normal course of business the Bank enters into transactions with

its related parties. IAS 39 requires initial recognition of financial instruments based on their fair values. Judgment is applied in

determining if transactions are priced at market or non-market interest rates, where there is no active market for such transac-

tions. The basis for judgment is pricing for similar types of transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analy-

sis. Terms and conditions of related party balances are disclosed in Note 27.

5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

The basis for judgement is pricing for similar types of transactions with unrelated parties and effective interest rate analy-

sis. A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective as of June 30, 2011, and have

not been applied in preparing these interim condensed consolidated financial statements. Of these pronouncements, poten-

tially the following will have an impact on the Bank’s transactions. The Bank plans to adopt these pronouncements when they

become effective. The Bank has not yet analysed the likely impact of these new standards on its financial statements.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The new stan-

dard is to be issued in phases and is intended ultimately to replace IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: “Recognition and

Measurement”. The first phase of IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and relates to the classification and measurement of

financial assets. The second phase regarding classification and measurement of financial liabilities was published in October

2010. The remaining parts of the standard are expected to be issued during 2011. The Bank recognises that the new standard

introduces many changes to the accounting for financial instruments and is likely to have a significant impact on the Bank’s

consolidated financial statements. The impact of these changes will be analysed during the course of the project as further

phases of the standard are issued. The Bank does not intend to adopt this standard earlier.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

The new standard supersedes IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” and SIC-12 “Consolidation – Special

Purpose Entities”. IFRS 10 introduces a single control model which includes entities that are currently within the scope of

SIC-12. Under the new three-step control model, an investor controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable

returns from its involvement with that investee, has the ability to affect those returns through its power over that investee and

there is a link between power and returns. Consolidation procedures are carried forward from IAS 27 (2008). When the adop-

tion of IFRS 10 does not result in a change in the previous consolidation or non-consolidation of an investee, no adjustments

to accounting are required on initial application. When the adoption results in a change in the consolidation or non-consolida-

tion of an investee, the new standard may be adopted with either full retrospective application from date that control was

obtained or lost or, if not practicable, with limited retrospective application from the beginning of the earliest period for which

the application is practicable, which may be the current period. Early adoption of IFRS 10 is permitted provided an entity also

early-adopts IFRS 11, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (2011).
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

When loans and other debt instruments become doubtful of collection, they are written down to the present value of

expected cash inflows and interest income is thereafter recorded for the unwinding of the present value discount based on the

asset’s effective interest rate which was used to measure the impairment loss.

All other fees, commissions and other income and expense items are generally recorded on an accrual basis by reference to

completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a proportion of the total services

to be provided. Loan syndication fees are recognized as income when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retains

no part of the loan package for itself or retains a part at the same effective interest rate as for the other participants.

Commissions and fees arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as

the acquisition of loans, shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, and which are earned on execution of

the underlying transaction, are recorded on its completion. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are rec-

ognized based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a time-proportion basis. Asset management fees related to invest-

ment funds are recorded rateably over the period the service is provided. The same principle is applied for wealth manage-

ment, financial planning and custody services that are continually provided over an extended period of time.

Share capital. Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dividends are both classified as

equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from

the proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is recorded as share pre-

mium in equity.

Foreign currency translation. The Bank’s functional and presentation currency is the national currency of the Republic

of Azerbaijan, Azerbaijani Manats (“AZN”).

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into entity’s functional currency at the official exchange rate of the CBA at the

respective balance sheet dates. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the

translation of monetary assets and liabilities into Bank’s functional currency at year-end official exchange rates of the CBA are

recognized in profit or loss. Translation at year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary items, including equity investments.

Effects of exchange rate changes on the fair value of equity securities are recorded as part of the fair value gain or loss. 

At 31 December 2011 the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was USD 1 = AZN

0.7865 and EUR 1 = AZN 1.0178.

Offsetting. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only

when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to either settle on a net

basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings per share. Preference shares are not redeemable and are considered to be participating shares. Earnings per

share is determined by dividing the profit or loss attributable to owners of the Bank by the weighted average number of par-

ticipating shares outstanding during the reporting year.

Staff costs and related contributions. Wages, salaries, contributions to the Azerbaijan Republic state pension and social

insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the

associated services are rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Segment reporting. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the

Bank’s chief operating decision maker. Segments whose revenue, result or assets are ten percent or more of all the segments

are reported separately.
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6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2011 2010

Cash on hand 1,920,370 1,631,979

Cash balances with the CBAR (other than mandatory reserve deposits) 3,527,132 1,087,359

Mandatory cash balances with CBAR 360,237 46,950

Correspondent accounts and overnight placements with other banks

- Republic of Azerbaijan (interest rate 1% per annum) 63,552 1,905,659

- Other countries (interest rate 1% to 3% per annum) 880,588 3,066,844

Total cash and cash equivalents 6,751,879 7,738,791

Cash balances with the CBA represent balances on the correspondent accounts of the Bank with the CBAR, which are used

by the Bank to perform settlements with other banks within the Republic of Azerbaijan. These accounts are non-interest bear-

ing.

The analysis by credit quality of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Correspondent accounts  

Cash Cash balances and overnight placements

on hand with the CBA with other banks Total

Current and not impaired

- Cash on hand 1,920,370 - - 1,920,370

- Government of the Republic of Azerbaijan - 3,887,368 - 3,887,368

- Top 15 Azerbaijani banks - - 55,687 55,687

- Other Azerbaijani banks - - 7,865 7,865

- OECD banks - - 869,161 869,161

- Non-OECD banks - - 11,428 11,428

Total current and not impaired 1,920,370 3,887,368 944,141 6,751,879

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,920,370 3,887,368 944,141 6,751,879

The analysis by credit quality of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Correspondent accounts  

Cash Cash balances and overnight placements

on hand with the CBA with other banks Total

Current and not impaired

- Cash on hand 1,631,979 - - 1,631,979

- Government of the Republic of Azerbaijan - 1,134,309 - 1,134,309

- Top 15 Azerbaijani banks - - 1,897,680 1,897,680

- Other Azerbaijani banks - - 7,979 7,979

- OECD banks - - 3,066,844 3,066,844

- Non-OECD banks - - -

Total current and not impaired 1,631,979 1,134,309 4,972,503 7,738,791

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,631,979 1,134,309 4,972,503 7,738,791
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5 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations (Continued)

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with retrospective

application required. The new standard supersedes IAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”. The main change introduced by IFRS

11 is that all joint arrangements are classified either as joint operations, which are consolidated on a proportionate basis, or as

joint ventures, for which the equity method is applied. The type of arrangement is determined based on the rights and obli-

gations of the parties to the arrangement arising from joint arrangement’s structure, legal form, contractual arrangement and

other facts and circumstances. When the adoption of IFRS 11 results in a change in the accounting model, the change is

accounted for retrospectively from the beginning of the earliest period presented. Under the new standard all parties to a joint

arrangement are within the scope of IFRS 11 even if all parties do not participate in the joint control. Early adoption of IFRS

11 is permitted provided the entity also early-adopts IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (2011).

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013. The new standard contains disclosure requirements for entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,

associates and unconsolidated structured entities. Interests are widely defined as contractual and non-contractual involvement

that exposes an entity to variability of returns from the performance of the other entity. The expanded and new disclosure

requirements aim to provide information to enable the users to evaluate the nature of risks associated with an entity’s interests

in other entities and the effects of those interests on the entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Entities may early present some of the IFRS 12 disclosures without a need to early-adopt the other new and amended stan-

dards. However, if IFRS 12 is early-adopted in full, then IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IAS 28 (2011) must also be early adopted.

IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The new

standard replaces the fair value measurement guidance contained in individual IFRSs with a single source of fair value meas-

urement guidance. It provides a revised definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and sets out

disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. IFRS 13 does not introduce new requirements to measure assets or lia-

bilities at fair value, nor does it eliminate the practicability exceptions to fair value measurement that currently exist in certain

standards. The standard is applied prospectively with early adoption permitted. Comparative disclosure information is not

required for periods before the date of initial application.

IAS 28 (2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” combines the requirements in IAS 28 (2008) and IAS 31

that were carried forward but not incorporated into IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. The amended standard will become effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with retrospective application required. Early adoption of IAS 28 (2011) is

permitted provided the entity also early-adopts IFRS 10, IFRS 11and IFRS 12.

Amendment to IAS 12 “Income Taxes – Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets”. The amendment introduces an

exception to the current measurement principles for deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from investment property meas-

ured using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40 “Investment Property”. The exception also applies to investment

property acquired in a business combination accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” provided the

acquirer subsequently measures the assets using the fair value model. In these specified circumstances the measurement of

deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets should reflect a rebuttable presumption that the carrying amount of the under-

lying asset will be recovered entirely by sale unless the asset is depreciated or the business model is to consume substantially

all the asset. The amendment is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 and is applied retrospectively.

Amendment to IFRS 7 Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets introduces additional disclosure requirements for

transfers of financial assets in situations where assets are not derecognised in their entirety or where the assets are derecognised

in their entirety but a continuing involvement in the transferred assets is retained. The new disclosure requirements are des-

ignated to enable the users of financial statements to better understand the nature of the risks and rewards associated with

these assets. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Unless otherwise described above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to significantly affect the Bank’s

financial statements.

BANK “BTB” OJSC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2011
(in New Azerbaijani Manats)



55

7 Due from Other Banks (Continued)

An analysis by credit quality of amounts due from other banks outstanding at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Short-term placements with other banks

Neither past due nor impaired

- Rated Azerbaijani banks:

Moody’s Caa1 with a stable outlook 500,000

Moody’s B1 with a stable outlook 2,510

Fitch/B- with a negative outlook 2,403,333

Other unrated Azerbaijani banks -

Total due from other banks 2,905,843

Management of the Bank did not determine any objective evidence of impairment of the balances due from other banks

and therefore, no provision for impairment was recorded at 31 December 2011.

Amounts due from other banks are not collateralized.

8 Loans and Advances to Customers

2011 2010

Corporate loans 20,659,220 10,356,280

Loans to individuals - car purchase 6,848,016 2,352,136

Loans to individuals - consumer loans 3,813,773 713,810

Loans to individuals - real estate 3,696,770 81,103

Loans to individuals - working capital 498,519 76,658

Loans to individuals - loans to employees 169,640 212,074

Loans to individuals - mortgage 130,358 -

Loans to individuals - plastic cards 2,675 5,294

Less: Provision for loan impairment (368,549) (124,434)

Total loans and advances to customers 35,450,422 13,672,921

2011 2010

Amount % Amount %

Individuals

Car purchase 6,848,016 19.12% 2,352,136 17.05%

Consumer loans 3,813,773 10.65% 713,810 5.17%

Real estate 3,696,770 10.32% 81,103 0.59%

Working capital 498,519 1.39% 76,658 0.56%

Loans to employees 169,640 0.47% 212,074 1.54%

Mortgage 130,358 0.36% - -

Plastic card 2,675 0.01% 5,294 0.04%

Total individuals 15,159,751 42.32% 3,441,075 24.94%

Trade and services 12,526,797 34.97% 6,314,733 45.77%

Manufacturing 5,922,961 16.54% 3,477,706 25.21%

Other non-manufacturing 1,798,746 5.02% 550,254 3.99%

Construction 410,716 1.15% 13,587 0.10%

Total corporate loans 20,659,220 57.68% 10,356,280 75.06%

Total loans and advances to customers (before impairment) 35,818,971 100% 13,797,355 100%

At 31 December 2011, the Bank’s top 13 borrowers had an aggregated loan amount of AZN 19,295,378 or 54%

(2010: AZN 10,506,464 or 77%) of the gross loan portfolio. There are nine local borrowers, with the outstanding loan balance

over 36% of total equity of the Bank as at 31 December 2011. Bank’s total exposure to these borrowers as at 31 December 2011

amounted to AZN 16,374,871
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6 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

The analysis by credit quality of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Cash balances with Correspondent

the CBA, including Accounts and

mandatory reserves overnight placements Total

Current and not impaired

- Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan 3,887,368 - 3,887,368

- A- to A+ rated - 880,589 880,589

- Lower than A- rated - 63,552 63,552

Total cash and cash equivalents, excluding cash on hand 3,887,368 944,141 4,831,509

The analysis by credit quality of cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Cash balances with Correspondent

the CBA, including Accounts and

mandatory reserves overnight placements Total

Current and not impaired

- Central Bank of the Republic of Azerbaijan 1,134,309 - 1,134,309

- A- to A+ rated - 3,066,844 3,066,844

- Lower than A- rated - 1,905,659 1,905,659

Total cash and cash equivalents, excluding cash on hand 1,134,309 4,972,503 6,106,812

7 Due from Other Banks

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Short-term placements with other banks 2,500 2,402,500

Short-term loans to banks - 500,000

Accrued interest receivable 60 3,343

Total due from other banks 2,560 2,905,843

On 21 October 2010 the Bank signed a loan agreement with Bank Standard OJSC in the amount of AZN 2,500 with matu-

rity date of 21 October 2015. The deposit bears market interest rate. The outstanding amount of this loan as at 31 December

2011 is AZN 2,560.

An analysis by credit quality of amounts due from other banks outstanding at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Short-term placements with other banks

Neither past due nor impaired

- Rated Azerbaijani banks:

Moody’s Caa1 with a stable outlook -

Moody’s B1 with a stable outlook 2,560

Fitch/B- with a negative outlook -

Other unrated Azerbaijani banks -

Total due from other banks 2,560
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8 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

The analysis by credit quality of loans at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Business de- Real

loans purchase card loans employees velopment estate Mortgage Total

Current and not impaired

Large new borrowers 13,573,272 - - - - - - - 13,573,272

Loans to medium size entities 774,983 - - - - - - - 774,983

Loans to small entities 5,931 - - - - - - - 5,931

Loans to individuals – new customers - 5,730,429 2,675 3,533,403 165,234 437,516 3,445,094 130,358 13,444,709

Loans to individuals- customers with 

credit history of more than one year - 768,425 - 147,097 4,406 21,866 137,310 - 1,079,104

Loans renegotiated in 2011 6,305,034 - - - - - - - 6,305,034

Total current and not impaired 20,659,220 6,498,854 2,675 3,680,500 169,640 459,382 3,582,404 130,358 35,183,033

Past due but not impaired

Less than 30 days overdue - 205,371 - 106,465 - 39,137 95,349 - 446,322

30 to 90 days overdue - 77,041 - 22,600 - - 19,017 - 118,658

90 to 180 days overdue - 66,750 - 4,208 - - - - 70,958

180 to 360 days overdue - - - - - - - - -

Over 360 days overdue - - - - - - - - -

Total past due but not impaired - 349,162 - 133,273 - 39,137 114,366 - 635,938

Loans individually determined to be 

impaired (gross) - - - - - - - - -

Total individually impaired loans (gross) - - - - - - - - -

Gross carrying values of loans 20,659,220 6,848,016 2,675 3,813,773 169,640 498,519 3,696,770 130,358 35,818,971

Less impairment provisions (362,409) (5,010) - (750) - - (380) - (368,549)

Total loans and advances to customers 20,296,811 6,843,006 2,675 3,813,023 169,640 498,519 3,696,390 130,358 35,450,422

The analysis by credit quality of loans at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Business de- Real 

loans purchase card loans employees velopment estate Total

Current and not impaired

Large new borrowers 9,444,040 - - - - - - 9,444,040

Loans to medium size entities 912,240 - - - - - - 912,240

Loans to individuals – new customers - 2,322,511 5,294 713,810 212,074 76,658 81,103 3,411,450

Total current and not impaired 10,356,280 2,322,511 5,294 713,810 212,074 76,658 81,103 13,767,730

Past due but not impaired

Less than 30 days overdue - 29,625 - - - - - 29,625

Total past due but not paid - 29,625 - - - - - 29,625

Loans individually determined to be impaired (gross) - - - - - - - -

Total individually impaired loans (gross) - - - - - - - -

Gross carrying values of loans 10,356,280 2,352,136 5,294 713,810 212,074 76,658 81,103 13,797,355

Less impairment provisions (124,434) - - - - - - (124,434)

Total loans and advances to customers 10,231,846 2,352,136 5,294 713,810 212,074 76,658 81,103 13,672,921

The Bank applied the portfolio provisioning methodology prescribed by IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement, and created portfolio provisions for impairment losses that were incurred but have not been specifically identi-

fied with any individual loan by the balance sheet date. The Bank’s policy is to classify each loan as ëcurrent and not impaired’

until a specific objective evidence of impairment of the loan is identified. The impairment provisions may exceed the total

gross amount of individually impaired loans as a result of this policy and the portfolio impairment methodology.

The primary factors that the Bank considers whether a loan is impaired is its overdue status and realizability of related col-

lateral, if any. As a result, the Bank presents above an ageing analysis of loans that are individually determined to be impaired.

Current and not impaired, but renegotiated loans represent the carrying amount of loans that would otherwise be past due or

impaired whose terms have been renegotiated. Past due but not impaired loans represent collateralized loans where the fair

value of collateral covers the overdue interest and principal repayments. The amount reported as past due but not impaired is

the whole balance of such loans, not only the individual installments that are past due.
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8 Loans and Advances to Customers (Continued)

The movement in the provision for loan impairment during 2011 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Working Real

loans purchase card loans employees capital estate Total

Provision for loan impairment at 1 January 2011 (124,434) - - - - - - (124,434)

Provision for loan impairment during the year (237,975) (5,010) - (750) - - (380) (244,115)

Provision for loan impairment at 31 December 2011 (362,409) (5,010) - (750) - - (380) (368,549)

The movement in the provision for loan impairment during 2010 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Working Real

loans purchase card loans employees capital estate Total

Provision for loan impairment at 1 April 2010 - - - - - - - -

Provision for loan impairment during the year (124,434) - - - - - - (124,434)

Provision for loan impairment at 31 December 2011 (124,434) - - - - - - (124,434)

Information about collateral at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Working Real 

loans purchase card loans employees capital estate Mortgage Total

Unsecured loans 10,227,209 88,890 2,675 978,821 5,558 211,724 164,327 - 11,679,204

Loans collateralized by:

-residential real estate 936,339 - - 2,486,693 106,076 281,164 2,795,130 130,358 6,735,760

-deposit - 4,010 - 234,361 53,601 - 737,313 - 1,029,285

-movable property 7,995,184 6,755,116 - 113,898 4,405 5,631 - - 14,874,234

-other assets 1,500,488 - - - - - - - 1,500,488

Total loans and advances to customers 20,659,220 6,848,016 2,675 3,813,773 169,640 498,519 3,696,770 130,358 35,818,971

Information about collateral at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Corporate Car Plastic Consumer Loans to Working Real 

loans purchase card loans employees capital estate Total

Unsecured loans 4,749,101 - 5,294 455,179 1,640 26,739 - 5,237,953

Loans collateralized by:

-residential real estate 745,678 - - 152,052 183,923 36,943 72,803 1,191,399

-deposit - - 28,344 - - 8,300 36,644

-movable property 2,328,215 2,352,136 - 78,235 26,511 12,976 - 4,798,073

-other assets 2,533,286 - - - - - - 2,533,286

Total loans and advances to customers 10,356,280 2,352,136 5,294 713,810 212,074 76,658 81,103 13,797,355
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11 Other Assets

2011 2010

Prepayments for purchase of intangible assets and equipment 78,016 114,443

Total other assets 78,016 114,443

As at 31 December 2011, prepayments of AZN 78,016 represent prepayments for purchase of accounting software, furni-

ture and computer and equipments.

12 Customer Accounts

2011 2010

State and public organizations

- Current/settlement accounts 66,694 -

- Term deposits 300,000 -

Other legal entities

- Current/settlement accounts 5,749,714 2,852,681

- Term deposits 7,797,092 1,032,762

Individuals

- Current/demand accounts 2,431,293 3,481,445

- Term deposits 11,402,038 4,898,474

Total customer accounts 27,746,831 12,265,362

Economic sector concentrations within customer accounts are as follows:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Amount % Amount %

Individuals 15,645,581 56.36% 8,379,919 68.32%

Trade and services 1,914,036 6.90% 35,621 0.29%

Insurance 8,159,853 29.41% 1,065,721 8.69%

Construction 352,361 1.27% 96,471 0.79%

Manufacturing 1,563,327 5.63% 2,672,546 21.79%

Transportation 51,177 0.18% 291 0%

Agriculture 3,106 0.01% - 0%

Other 57,390 0.21% 14,793 0.12%

Total customer accounts 27,746,831 100% 12,265,362 100%

At 31 December 2011 the Bank had 10 customers with balances above AZN 136,000. The aggregate balance of these cus-

tomers was AZN 9,144,222 or 34% (2010: AZN 9,777,063 or 80%) of total customer accounts. 

Refer to Note 26 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of customer accounts. The interest rate analysis of cus-

tomer accounts is disclosed in Note 23. The information on related party balances is disclosed in Note 27.
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9 Premises, Equipment and Intangible Assets

Furniture Computers and Total Computer

and Communication Motor premises and software

Note Fixtures Equipment Vehicles equipment licenses Total

Net book amount at 1 January 2011 155,561 125,271 - 280,832 35,321 316,153

Additions 473,839 267,952 212,600 954,391 13,339 967,730

Disposals/Sales

Depreciation/amortization charge (79,761) (72,187) (22,357) (174,306) (4,523) (178,829)

Net Book amount at 31 December 2011 549,639 321,036 190,243 1,060,917 44,137 1,105,054

Cost at 31 December 2011 629,400 393,223 212,600 1,235,223 48,660 1,283,883

Accumulated depreciation/amortization (79,761) (72,187) (22,357) (174,306) (4,523) (178,829)

Net book amount at 1 January 2012 549,639 321,036 190,243 1,060,917 44,137 1,105,054

10 Other Financial Assets

2011 2010

Credit and debit cards receivables 6,792 6,061

Other financial assets 1,173 2,300

Total other financial assets 7,965 8,361

The analysis by credit quality of other financial receivables outstanding at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Settlements Amounts Guarantee

with payment in the course deposits

system operators of settlement placed Other Total

Current and not impaired

- Top 5 money transfer entities - - - - -

- Top 5 card issuing companies Azericard 6,792 - - 6,792

- Other companies - - - 1,173 1,173

Total other financial assets 6,792 - 1,173 7,965

The analysis by credit quality of other financial receivables outstanding at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Settlements Amounts Guarantee

with payment in the course deposits

system operators of settlement placed Other Total

Current and not impaired

- Top 5 money transfer entities - - - - -

- Top 5 card issuing companies Azericard 6,061 - - 6,061

- Other companies - - - 2,300 2,300

Total other financial assets 6,061 - 2 300 8,361

The primary factors that the Bank considers whether a receivable is impaired is its overdue status and realisability of relat-

ed collateral, if any.

Refer to Note 26 for the disclosure of the fair value of each class of other financial assets. 
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17 Interest Income and Expense

2011 2010

Interest income

Loans and advances to customers 3,913,722 710,856 

Correspondent accounts and placement with other banks 220,524 173,954 

Other 85,557 1,749 

Total interest income 4,219,803 886,559

Interest expense

Term deposits of legal entities (572,233) (26,698)

Term deposits of individuals (800,126) (135,708)

Total interest expense (1,372,359) (162,406)

Net interest income 2,847,444 724,153

18 Fee and Commission Income and Expense

2011 2010

Fee and commission income

- Cash collection 960,657 268,379

- Settlement transactions 280,356 262,182

- Foreign exchange operations 181,276 19,806

- Plastic cards operations 105,130 12,752

- Letters of credit and guarantee letters 85,993 2,018

Total fee and commission income 1,613,412 565,137

Fee and commission expense

- Settlement transactions (86,613) (19,227)

- Cash collection (65,433) (4,915)

- Plastic cards operations (29,675) (3,825)

- Other (23,801) (1,436)

Total fee and commission expense (205,522) (29,403)

Net fee and commission income 1,407,890 535,734
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13 Other Borrowed funds

2011 2010

Pasha Bank 1,500,000 -

Mortgage Fund 131,802 -

Accrued Interest 3,700 -

Total Other Borrowed funds 1,635,502 -

14 Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities comprise the following:

2011 2010

Debit or credit cards payables 628 -

Amounts payable for the received services 11,254 6,169

Settlements on conversion operations - 1,487

Amounts payable for the purchase of equipment - 8,850

Total other financial liabilities 11,882 16,506

Refer to Note 26 for disclosure of the fair value of each class of other financial liabilities.

15 Other Liabilities

Other liabilities comprise the following:

2011 2010

Deferred income from sale of plastic cards 25,692 18,690

Other liabilities 1,124 493

Total other liabilities 26,816 19,183

All of the above liabilities are expected to be settled less than twelve months after the year-end.

16 Share Capital

Number of Ordinary Share Preference 

outstanding shares shares premium shares Total

At 1 April 2010 - - - - -

New shares issued 12,000,000 12,000,000

At 31 December 2010 - 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000

New shares issued - -

At 31 December 2011 12,000,000 12,000,000

The Bank is registered by the tax authorities as an open joint stock company in 24 February 2010. The Bank’s initial cap-

ital was AZN 12,000 thousand and was paid in by the founders during the 2010 to the Bank’s correspondent account with the

CBAR. The Bank has authorized but not issued the shares of the bank and not registered at the State Securities Committee.

The Bank records this amount as equity until the share capital is formally approved by the State Securities Committee. To

complete the legal procedures of registering its share capital, the Bank authorized for issue 12,000 ordinary shares with a par

value of AZN 1,000 per share.
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20 Income Taxes (Continued)

The Management of the Bank prepares financial statements based on the instructions of the Central Bank of the Republic

of Azerbaijan. Further adjustments are made to meet the requirements of IFRS. Such financial information differs from

International Financial Reporting Standards by loan impairment provision. Such a conversion adjustment amounted to AZN

266,938 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (AZN 449,179 for the year ended 31 December 2010).

Differences between IFRS and Azerbaijani statutory taxation regulations give rise to temporary differences between the

carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. The tax effect of the movements

in these temporary differences is detailed below and is recorded at the rate of 20%.

Relationships between tax expenses and accounting profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 are explained as follows: 

Year ended 31-Dec-11 Year ended 31-Dec-10

Profit before income tax 1,519,401 455,461

Tax rate 20% 20%

Tax at the statutory tax rate 303,880 91,092 

Tax effect of permanent differences 23,683 2,191 

Unrecognized tax loss carry forwards (312,955) 9,710 

Income tax expense 14,608 102,993 

Current income tax expense - -

Change in the deferred tax liabilities 14,608 102,993 

Income tax expense 14,608 102,993 

On 14 November 2008, a new law on “Stimulation of Increasing the Capitalization of Banks, Insurance and Reinsurance

Companies” was enacted. According to the law the profit tax rate for banks, insurance and reinsurance companies is reduced

to 0% for three fiscal years from 1 January 2009, where all profits are retained within the business. As at 31 December 2011,

Management decided to capitalize the retained earnings.

21 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Bank by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. The Bank has no dilutive potential ordinary shares; there-

fore, the diluted earnings per share equal the basic earnings per share.

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 1,504,795 352,468

Profit for the year 1,504,795 352,468

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 12,000 12,000

Basic and diluted earnings per ordinary share (expressed in AZN per share) 125.40 29.37
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19 Administrative and Other Expenses

Note 2011 2010

Staff costs 1,451,376 393,512

Payroll taxes and social security cost 316,459 87,046

Rent expenses 299,198 23,500

Depreciation of premises and equipment 9 178,829 10,587

Security services 136,444 15,387

Communication expense 124,834 21,061

Cheques and Other Valuables 60,855 17,832

Membership fees 41,887 26,874

Professional services 38,420 28,351

Repair and maintenance expenses 27,163 3,372

Stationery and other office supplies 26,024 7,425

Advertising and marketing 21,947 22,842

Utilities 10,547 1,899

Business trip 3,742 7,163

Entertainment Expenses 2,279 -

Taxes, other than income tax 1,140 1,090

Other 22,187 9,262

Total administrative and other operating expenses 2,763,331 677,203

Included in staff costs are statutory social security costs of AZN 316,459 (2010: AZN 87,046).

20 Income Taxes

Income tax expense comprises the following:

2011 2010

Current tax - -

Deferred tax 14,608 102,993

Income tax expense for the year 14,608 102,993

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Bank’s income is 20%. 

On 19 June 2009, the Republic of Azerbaijan reduced the standard corporate income tax rate from 22% to 20% with effect

from 1 January 2010.

Temporary differences as at 31 December 2011 comprise:

31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

Taxable temporary differences:

Due from Banks 208 58,210 

Intangible asset - 3,461 

Property Plant and Equipment - 62,327 

Loans and advances to Customers 587,800 390,969 

Total taxable temporary differences 588,008 514,967 

Net deferred taxable temporary differences (588,008) (514,967)

Net deferred tax liability at the statutory tax rate (20% from 01.01.2010) (117,602) (102,993)
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22 Segment Analysis (Continued)

Segment information for the reportable operating segments of the Bank for the years ended 31 December 2011 is set out

below:

“Corporate “Retail “Shared

Note Banking” Banking” Services” Total

External Revenue

Net Interest Income 1,989,262 614,066 - 2,603,328

Net Fee and Commission Income 912,310 495,580 271,516 1,679,406

Total Segment Revenue 2,901,572 1,109,646 271,516 4,282,734

Administrative expenses (265,804) (1,767,835) (729,692) (2,763,331)

Segment Results 2,635,768 (658,189) (458,176) 1,519,403

Income Tax Expense - - (14,608) (14,608)

Profit for the Period 2,635,768 (658,189) (472,784) 1,504,795

Segment Assets 20,407,761 15,053,186 7,934,949 43,395,896

Unallocated Assets - - - -

Total Assets 20,407,761 15,053,186 7,934,949 43,395,896

Segment Liabilities 14,270,582 14,073,523 1,194,528 29,538,633

Unallocated Liabilities - - - -

Total Liabilities 14,270,582 14,073,523 1,194,528 29,538,633

Impairment losses on financial assets - - (492,983) (492,983)

Depreciation and amortization - - (184,814) (184,814)

Segment information for the reportable operating segments of the Bank for the years ended 31 December 2010 is set out

below:

“Corporate “Retail “Shared

Note Banking” Banking” Services” Total

External Revenue

Net Interest Income 581,548 18,171 - 599,719

Net Fee and Commission Income 385,321 146,839 785 532,945

Total Segment Revenue 966,869 165,010 785 1,132,664

Administrative expenses (28,352) (480,558) (168,293) (677,203)

Segment Results 938,517 (315,548) (167,508) 455,461

Income Tax Expense - - (102,994) (102,994)

Profit for the Period 938,517 (315,548) (270,502) 352,467

Segment Assets 13,137,688 3,449,437 8,169,387 24,756,512

Unallocated Assets - - - -

Total Assets 13,137,688 3,449,437 8,169,387 24,756,512

Segment Liabilities 3,883,153 8,399,039 121,852 12,404,044

Unallocated Liabilities - - - -

Total Liabilities 3,883,153 8,399,039 121,852 12,404,044

Impairment losses on financial assets - - (124,434) (124,434)

Depreciation and amortization - - (10,587) (10,587)
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22 Segment Analysis

Starting from 1 April 2010, the Bank prepares its segment analysis in accordance with IFRS 8, Operating segments, which

replaced IAS 14, Segment reporting. Comparatives were adjusted to conform to the presentation of current period amounts.

Following the management approach of IFRS 8, operating segments are reported in accordance with the internal reporting

provided to the Board of Directors (the chief operating decision-maker), which is responsible for allocating resources to the

reportable segments and assesses its performance. All operating segments used by the Bank meet the definition of a reportable

segment under IFRS 8.

The Bank is organised on a basis of following operating segments: 

• Retail banking – representing private banking services, private customer current accounts, savings, deposits, investment

savings products, custody, credit and debit cards, consumer loans and mortgages.

• Corporate banking – representing direct debit facilities, current accounts, deposits, overdrafts, loan and other credit facili-

ties, foreign currency and derivative products. 

There are no other material items of income or expense between the operating segments. Segment assets and liabilities

comprise operating assets and liabilities, being the majority of the balance sheet, but excluding taxation. 

The Board of Directors reviews financial information prepared based on Azerbaijan accounting standards adjusted to meet

the requirements of internal reporting. Such financial information differs in certain aspects from International Financial

Reporting Standards:

(i) the fair value changes in available for sale securities are reported within the other comprehensive income; 

(ii) funds are generally reallocated between segments at internal interest rates set by the treasury department, which are deter-

mined by reference to market interest rate benchmarks, contractual maturities for loans and observed actual maturities of

customer accounts balances;

(iii) income taxes are not allocated to segments; 

(iv) loan provisions are recognized based on management judgment and availability of information rather than based on the

incurred loss model prescribed in IAS 39;
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23 Financial Risk Management

The risk management function within the Bank is carried out in respect of financial risks, operational risks and legal risks.

Financial risk comprises market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are to establish risk limits, and then ensure that expo-

sure to risks stays within these limits. The operational and legal risk management functions are intended to ensure proper func-

tioning of internal policies and procedures to minimise operational and legal risks.

Credit risk. The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause

a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a result of the Bank’s

lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the consolidated

statement of financial position. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not

significant. For guarantees and commitments to extend credit, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the amount of the com-

mitment.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to

one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Limits on the level of credit risk by product

and industry sector are approved regularly by management. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to an

annual or more frequent review.

Loan applications originated by the relevant client relationship managers are passed on to the relevant credit committee

for approval of credit limit. Exposure to credit risk is also managed, in part, by obtaining collateral and corporate and personal

guarantees.

In order to monitor credit risk exposures, regular reports are produced by the credit department’s officers based on a struc-

tured analysis focusing on the customer’s business and financial performance. Any significant exposures against customers with

deteriorating creditworthiness are reported to and reviewed by the Board of Directors. The Bank does not use formalised inter-

nal credit ratings to monitor exposures to credit risk. Management monitors and follows up on past due balances.

The Bank’s credit department reviews ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows up on past due balances.

Management therefore considers it appropriate to provide ageing and other information about credit risk.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as a result of another

party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract. The Bank uses the same credit

policies in assuming conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet financial instruments, through established credit

approvals, risk control limits and monitoring procedures

Credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet assets are as follows:

2011 2010

Loans and advances to customers:

Loans to individuals:

- Car purchase 6,848,016 2,352,136 

- Consumer loans 3,813,773 713,810 

- Loans to employees 169,640 212,074 

- Real estate 3,696,770 81,103 

- Working capital 498,519 76,658 

- Mortgage 130,358 -

- Plastic card 2,675 5,294 

Loans to corporate entities:

- Large new borrowers 12,769,749 9,444,040 

- Loans to medium size entities 774,983 912,240 

- Loans to small entities 5,931 -

- Others 7,108,557

Due from Banks

Loans to banks 60 503,333

TOTAL 35,819,031 14,176,254
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22 Segment Analysis (Continued)

Allocation of segment assets and liabilities into operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2011:

Corporate Retail Shared Total:

ASSETS:

Cash and Balances with CBAR - - 6,391,642 6,391,642

Mandatory cash balances with CBAR - - 360,237 360,237

Due from Banks 2,560 - - 2,560

Loans to Customers 20,405,201 15,045,221 - 35,450,422

PPE - - 1,060,917 1,060,917

Intangible Assets - - 44,137 44,137

Other financial assets - 7,965 - 7,965

Other Assets - - 78,016 78,016

Total Assets 20,407,761 15,053,186 7,934,949 43,395,896

LIABILITIES:

Customers Accounts 13,685,191 14,061,640 - 27,746,831

Borrowings 1,635,502 - - 1,635,502

Deferred Tax Liability - - 117,602 117,602

Other financial liabilities - - 11,882 11,882

Other Liabilities - - 26,816 26,816

Total liabilities 15,320,693 14,061,640 156,300 29,538,633

Net Balance Sheet Position 5,087,068 991,546 7,778,649 13,857,263

Allocation of segment assets and liabilities into operating segments for the year ended 31 December 2010:

Corporate Retail Shared Total:

ASSETS:

Cash and Balances with CBAR - - 7,691,841 7,691,841 

Mandatory cash balances with CBAR - - 46,950 46,950 

Due from Banks 2,905,843 - - 2,905,843 

Loans to Customers 10,231,845 3,441,076 - 13,672,921 

PPE - - 280,832 280,832 

Intangible Assets - - 35,321 35,321 

Other financial assets - 8,361 - 8,361

Other Assets - - 114,443 114,443 

Total Assets 13,137,688 3,449,437 8,169,387 24,756,512 

LIABILITIES:

Customers Accounts 3,866,323 8,399,039 - 12,265,362 

Deferred Tax Liability - - 102,993 102,993 

Other financial liabilities 1,487 - 15,019 16,506

Other Liabilities 15,343 - 3,840 19,183 

Total liabilities 3,883,153 8,399,039 121,852 12,404,044 

Net Balance Sheet Position 9,254,535 (4,949,602) 8,047,535 12,352,468 

The Management of the Bank reviews financial information prepared based on IFRS adjusted to meet the requirements

of internal reporting. Such financial information differs from International Financial Reporting Standards by loan impairment

provision as described in the above table. Such a conversion adjustment amounted to AZN 266,938 for the year ended 31

December 2011 (AZN 449,179 for the year ended 31 December 2010).

Geographical information

Revenues are attributed to the Republic of Azerbaijan and, allocated on the basis of the customer’s location. All non-cur-

rent assets of the Bank other than financial instruments are located in the territory of the Republic of Azerbaijan. 
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

At 31 December 2010

Monetary financial assets Monetary financial liabilities Position

Azerbaijani Manats 17,124,734 5,656,640 11,468,094 

US Dollars 7,090,828 6,588,175 502,653 

Euros 24,821 13,543 11,278 

GBP 77,573 23,318 54,255 

Other 7,960 192 7,768 

Total 24,325,916 12,281,868 12,044,048 

The above analysis includes only monetary assets and liabilities. Investments in equities and nonmonetary assets are not

considered to give rise to any material currency risk.

The following table presents sensitivities of profit and loss and equity to reasonably possible changes in exchange rates

applied at the balance sheet date, with all other variables held constant:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

impact on profit or loss impact on profit or loss

US Dollars strengthening by 2% 18,394 10,053

US Dollars weakening by 2% (18,394) (10,053)

Euro strengthening by 10% (55.4) 1,128

Euro weakening by 10% 55.4 (1,128)

Other than as a result of any impact on the Bank’s profit or loss, there is no other impact on the Bank’s equity as a result

of such changes in exchange rates.

The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of

the Bank.

The Bank discloses only the effects of the changes at the limits of the reasonably possible range of the relevant risk vari-

able, rather than all reasonably possible changes.

Interest rate risk. The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates

on its financial position and cash flows. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes, but may reduce or create loss-

es in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Management Board monitors on a daily basis and sets limits on the level

of mismatch of interest rate reprising that may be undertaken. In the absence of any available hedging instruments, the Bank

normally seeks to match its interest rate positions. 

The Bank monitors interest rates for its financial instruments. The table below summarizes interest rates based on reports

reviewed by key management personnel:

2011 2010

Ên % p.a. AZN USD AZN USD

Assets

Loans and advances to customers 28% 21% 15.59% 18.88%

Liabilities

Customer accounts (term deposits 11.23% 11.05% 11.84% 13.60%
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk exposures relating to off-balance sheet items are as follows:

Maximum exposure Maximum exposure

2011 2010

Financial guarantees 1,049,807 360,699

Loan commitments and other credit related obligations 3,056,791 1,573,534

Total 4,106,598 1,934,233

The above table represents a worse-case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank at 31 December 2011, without taking

account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance-sheet assets, the exposures set out above

are based on net carrying amounts as reported in the statement of financial position.

The appraisal of the collateral value provided to secure a loan is conducted by independent qualified companies and by the

Bank’s professional staff depending on type of collateral and amount of credit granted.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as a result of another

party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract. The Bank uses the same credit

policies in making conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet financial instruments through established credit

approvals, risk control limits and monitoring procedures.

Market risk. The Bank takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in (a) currency, (b) inter-

est rate and (c) equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. Management sets limits

on the value of risk that may be accepted, which is monitored on a daily basis. However, the use of this approach does not pre-

vent losses outside of these limits in the event of more significant market movements. 

Currency risk. The Bank takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rates on

its financial position and cash flows. The Management Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for

both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The Bank does not deal in any derivative instruments for

speculative or hedging purposes. Such instruments are not commonly used in Azerbaijan. 

The main element in the Bank’s risk policy regarding foreign currency risk is that there is no conscious effort to take a trad-

ing position in any currency. Limited open positions occur as a natural consequence of business operations only. The Bank uses

every effort to match its assets and liabilities by currency.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk faced by the Bank is also limited by the CBA normative requirements, which place a

10% of capital limit on open positions in any single foreign currency and a 20% open limit on all foreign currencies. 

The table below summarizes the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the balance sheet date:

At 31 December 2011

Monetary financial assets Monetary financial liabilities Position

Azerbaijani Manats 37,053,946 25,158,635 11,895,311

US Dollars 5,146,731 4,227,038 919,693

Euros 1,361 1,915 (554)

GBP 8,119 6,600 1,519

Other 5,229 27 5,202

Total 42,215,386 29,394,215 12,821,171
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Other risk concentrations. Management monitors and discloses concentrations of credit risk by obtaining reports listing

the exposures to borrowers with aggregated loan balances in excess of 10% of net assets. The Bank discloses any such con-

centrations within the respective notes in its financial statements..

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations arising from its

financial obligations. It refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other financial commit-

ments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due. Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and lia-

bilities do not match. The matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities

is fundamental to the management of financial institutions. In order to manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs daily moni-

toring of future expected cash flows on clients’ and banking operations, which is part of the assets/liabilities management

process. 

The Management Board and Supervisory Board set limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet

deposit withdrawals and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover with-

drawals under both normal and stressed conditions. They also set parameters for the risk diversification of the liability base.

The Bank seeks to maintain a stable funding base comprising primarily amounts due to other banks, corporate and retail cus-

tomer deposits and debt securities and invest the funds in diversified portfolios of liquid assets, in order to be able to respond

quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements. The liquidity management of the Bank requires considering the

level of liquid assets necessary to settle obligations as they fall due; maintaining access to a range of funding sources; main-

taining funding contingency plans and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements. The Bank cal-

culates its instant liquidity ratio at a required minimum of thirty percent on a monthly basis in accordance with the require-

ment of the Central Bank of Azerbaijan. As at 31 December 2011, the actual ratio was 120% .

The day-to-day liquidity management is performed by the Treasury Department within a comprehensive framework set

by the Assets and Liabilities Committee, and monitored independently by the Board Management. The Bank monitors and

reports liquidity risk daily, paying particular attention to ensuring that there are optimal levels of cash and cash equivalent

instruments to fund increases in assets, unexpected decreases in liabilities, as well as meeting legal requirements, while opti-

mizing the cost of carrying any excess liquidity.

To manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ and banking oper-

ations, which forms part of the asset and liability management process. The Bank also has to comply with minimum levels of

liquidity required by the CBA.

The CBA has in place minimum levels of liquidity required. As of 31 December, 2011, Management considers that the

Bank was in compliance with all these covenants. 

The Bank’s liquidity policy is comprised of the following: 

• Projecting cash flows and maintaining the level of liquid assets necessary to ensure liquidity in various time-bands; 

• Maintaining a funding plan commensurate with the Bank’s strategic goals; 

• Maintaining a diverse range of funding sources thereby increasing the Bank’s borrowing capacity, domestically as well as

from foreign sources; 

• Maintaining highly liquid and high-quality assets; 

• Adjusting its product base by time bands against available funding sources; 

• Daily monitoring of liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements; and 

• Constant monitoring of asset and liability structures by time-bands. 

The treasury function within the Bank is charged with the following responsibilities: 

• Compliance with the liquidity requirements of the CBA as well as with the liquidity requirement covenants contained in

the agreements with foreign lending sources; 

• Daily reports to management, including reporting to management on the forecast levels of cash flows in the main curren-

cies (AZN, USD, EUR), cash positions, balance sheet changes; 

• Constantly controlling/monitoring the level of liquid assets; 

• Monitoring of deposit and other liability concentrations; and 

• Maintaining a plan for the instant increase of cash to provide liquidity under stressed conditions. 

The Asset Liability Management Committee is responsible for ensuring that Treasury properly manages the Bank’s liq-

uidity position. The Risk Management Department is responsible for controlling these activities. Decisions on liquidity posi-

tions and management are made by the Management Board. Funding plans are approved by the Supervisory Board.
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

Geographical risk concentrations. The geographical concentration of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at 31

December 2011 is set out below:

Azerbaijan Other CIS OECD Non-OECD

Republic countries countries countries Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5,511,054 - 869,160 11,428 6,391,642

Mandatory cash balances with CBAR 360,237 - - - 360,237

Due from banks 2,560 - - - 2,560

Loans to customers 35,450,422 - - - 35,450,422

Premises and equipment 1,060,917 - - - 1,060,917

Intangible assets 44,137 - - - 44,137

Other financial assets 7,965 - - - 7,965

Other assets 78,016 - - - 78,016

TOTAL ASSETS 42,515,308 - 869,160 11,428 43,395,896

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 27,746,831 - - - 27,746,831

Other borrowed funds 1,635,502 - - - 1,635,502

Deferred income tax liabilities 117,602 - - - 117,602

Other financial liabilities 11,882 - - - 11,882

Other liabilities 26,816 - - - 26,816

TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,538,633 - - - 29,538,633

NET POSITION 12,976,675 - 869,160 11,428 13,857,263

Geographical risk concentrations. The geographical concentration of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities at 31

December 2010 is set out below:

Azerbaijan Other CIS OECD Non-OECD

Republic countries countries countries Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4,624,997 - 3,066,844 - 7,691,841

Mandatory cash balances with CBAR 46,950 - - - 46,950

Due from banks 2,905,843 2,905,843

Loans to customers 13,672,921 - - - 13,672,921

Premises and equipment 280,832 - - - 280,832

Intangible assets 35,321 - - - 35,321

Other financial assets 8,361 - - - 8,361

Other assets 114,443 - - - 114,443

TOTAL ASSETS 21,689,668 - 3,066,844 - 24,756,512

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 12,265,362 - - - 12,265,362

Deferred income tax liabilities 102,993 - - - 102,993

Other financial liabilities 16,506 - - - 16,506

Other liabilities 19,183 - - - 19,183

TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,404,044 - - - 12,404,044

NET POSITION 9,285,624 - 3,066,844 - 12,352,468
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The contractual maturity analysis of balance sheet at 31 December 2010 is as follows:

Weighted 

average effective Up to 1 month to 3 month to 1 year to Maturity 31 December 

interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years undefined 2010 Total

ASSETS

Due from banks 9% 527,819 40,008 2,580,038 2,700 - 3,150,565

Loans to customers 26% 3,236,058 6,315,662 5,233,054 2,872,859 - 17,657,633

Total interest bearing assets 3,763,877 6,355,670 7,813,092 2,875,559 - 20,808,198

Cash and balances with CBA 7,691,841 - - - 46,950 7,738,791

Due form banks - - - - -

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - 280,832 280,832

Intangible assets - - - - 35,321 35,321

Other Financial Assets - - - - 8,361 8,361

Other assets - - - 114,443 114,443

Total Assets 11,455,718 6,355,670 7,813,092 2,875,559 485,907 28,985,946

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 15.19% 127,756 99,510 4,494,226 887,654 - 5,609,146

Total interest bearing liabilities 127,756 99,510 4,494,226 887,654 - 5,609,146

Customer Accounts 6,334,126 - - - - 6,334,126

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 102,993 102,993

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 16,506 16,506

Other liabilities - - - 19,184 19,184

Total Liabilities 6,461,882 99,510 4,494,226 887,654 138,683 12,081,955

Liquidity gap 4,993,837 6,256,160 3,318,866 1,987,905 347,224 16,903,991

Interest sensitivity gap 3,636,121 6,256,161 3,318,866 1,987,905 -

Cumulative interest 3,636,121 9,892,282 13,211,147 15,199,052 -
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The contractual maturity analysis of balance sheet at 31 December 2011 is as follows:

Weighted 

average effective Up to 1 month to 3 month to 1 year to Maturity 31 December 

interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years undefined 2010 Total

ASSETS

Due from banks 2% 4 8 38 2,700 - 2,750

Loans to customers 25.9% 12,258,848 5,667,984 16,365,345 10,046,965 (135,057) 44,204,085

Total interest bearing assets 12,258,852 5,667,992 16,365,383 10,049,665 (135,057) 44,206,835

Cash and balances with CBA 6,391,642 - - - 360,237 6,751,879

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - 1,060,917 1,060,917

Intangible assets - - - - 44,137 44,137

Other Financial Assets - - - - 7,965 7,965

Other assets - - - - 78,016 78,016

Total Assets 18,653,054 5,667,992 16,365,383 10,049,665 1,416,215 52,149,749

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 15.2% 1,793,996 889,317 8,167,431 3,467,831 - 14,318,575

Other borrowed funds 8.8% 18,329 29,257 1,631,658 42,177 - 1,721,421

Total interest bearing liabilities 1,812,325 918,574 9,799,089 3,510,008 - 16,039,996

Customer Accounts 0% 15,000,974 - - - - 15,000,974

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - 117,602 117,602

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 11,882 11,882

Other liabilities - - - - 26,816 26,816

Total Liabilities 16,813,299 918,574 9,799,089 3,510,008 156,300 31,197,270

Liquidity gap 1,837,195 4,749,418 6,566,294 6,539,657 1,414,652 20,952,479

Interest sensitivity gap 10,446,527 4,749,418 6,566,294 6,539,657 (135,057)

Cumulative interest 10,446,527 15,195,945 21,762,239 28,301,896 28,166,839
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The Bank does not use the undiscounted maturity analysis to manage liquidity. Instead, the Bank monitors maturities,

which may be summarized as follows at 31 December 2010:

Weighted 

average effective Up to 1 month to 3 month to 1 year to Maturity 31 December 

interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years undefined 2010 Total

ASSETS

Due from banks 721,567 436,448 1,745,836 1,992 - 2,905,843

Loans to customers 2,815,226 5,468,306 3,391,300 2,122,523 (124,434) 13,672,921

Total interest bearing assets 3,536,793 5,904,754 5,137,136 2,124,515 (124,434) 16,578,764

Cash and balances with CBA 7,691,841 - - - 46,950 7,738,791

Due from banks - - - - 0

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - 280,832 280,832

Intangible assets - - - - 35,321 35,321

Other Financial Assets - - - - 8,361 8,361

Other assets - - - 114,443 114,443

Total Assets 11,228,634 5,904,754 5,137,136 2,124,515 361,473 24,756,512

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 78,001 - 5,052,495 800,740 - 5,931,236

Total interest bearing liabilities 78,001 - 5,052,495 800,740 - 5,931,236

Customer accounts 6,334,126 - - - - 6,334,126

Deferred tax liability - - - - 102,993 102,993

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 16,506 16,506

Other liability - - - - 19,183 19,183

Total Liabilities 6,412,127 - 5,052,495 800,740 138,682 12,404,044

Liquidity gap 4,816,507 5,904,754 84,641 1,323,775 222,791 12,352,468

The matching and/or controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to

the management of the Bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched since business transacted is often of an

uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk

of losses. The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as

they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Bank and its exposure to changes in interest and exchange

rates.

Management considers that the current favorable macroeconomic environment for financial institutions operating in

Azerbaijan, positive cash flows, the profitability of operations and access to foreign financial resources as required significant-

ly decrease the risk of losses arising from current liquidity mismatches.

Diversification of these deposits by number and type of depositors, and the past experience of the Bank would indicate

that these customer accounts provide a long-term and stable source of funding for the Bank. Customer accounts are classified

in the above analysis based on contractual maturities. However, in accordance with Azerbaijani Civil Code, individuals have a

right to withdraw their deposits prior to maturity if they forfeit their right to accrued interest.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby letters of credit are considerably less than the

amount of the commitment because the Bank does not generally expect the third party to draw funds under the agreement.

The total outstanding contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash require-

ments, since many of these commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.
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23 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

The Bank does not use the undiscounted maturity analysis to manage liquidity. Instead, the Bank monitors maturities,

which may be summarized as follows at 31 December 2011:

Weighted 

average effective Up to 1 month to 3 month to 1 year to Maturity 31 December 

interest rate 1 month 3 months 1 year 5 years undefined 2010 Total

ASSETS

Due from banks 60 - - 2,500 - 2,560

Loans to customers 12,474,910 3,930,369 12,316,990 6,994,812 (266,659) 35,450,422

Total interest bearing assets 12,474,970 3,930,369 12,316,990 6,997,312 (266,659) 35,452,982

Cash and balances with CBA 6,391,642 - - - 360,237 6,751,879

Property, Plant and Equipment - - - - 1,060,917 1,060,917

Intangible assets - - - - 44,137 44,137

Other Financial Asset - - - - 7,965 7,965

Other assets - - - - 78,016 78,016

Total Assets 18,866,612 3,930,369 12,316,990 6,997,312 1,284,613 43,395,896

LIABILITIES

Customer accounts 1,686,461 674,248 7,199,615 3,185,533 - 12,745,857

Other borrowed funds 3700 - 1,500,000 131,802 - 1,635,502

Total interest bearing liabilities 1,690,161 674,248 8,699,615 3,317,335 - 14,381,359

Customer accounts 15,000,974 - - - - 15,000,974

Deferred tax liability - - - - 117,602 117,602

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 11,882 11,882

Other liability - - - - 26,816 26,816

Total Liabilities 16,691,135 647,247 8,699,615 3,317,335 156,300 29,538,633

Liquidity gap 2,175,477 3,256,121 3,617,375 3,679,977 1,283,050 13,857,263
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25 Contingencies and Commitments 

Capital expenditure commitments. At 31 December 2011, the Bank had no significant contractual capital expenditure

commitments in respect of premises and equipment, or in any other areas.

Operating lease commitments. At 31 December 2011, the Bank had no significant operating lease commitments.

Legal proceedings. From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Bank can be received. On

the basis of its own estimates and both internal and external professional advice the Bank’s management is of the opinion that

no material losses will be incurred in respect of claims and accordingly no provision has been made in these financial state-

ments. 

Tax legislation. Azerbaijani tax, currency and customs legislation is subject to varying interpretations, and changes , which

can occur frequently. Management used its best interpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of

the Bank.

The Bank has the following outstanding credit related commitments:

2011 2010

Guarantees issued 1,049,807 360,699

Undrawn credit lines 3,056,791 1,573,534

Total credit related commitments 4,106,598 1,934,233

The total outstanding contractual amount of un-drawn credit lines, letters of credit, and guarantees does not necessarily

represent future cash requirements, as these financial instruments may expire or terminate without being funded. 

Credit related commitments are denominated in currencies as follows:

2011 2010

Azerbaijani Manats 4,106,598 1,934,233

Total 4,106,598 1,934,233

26 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing par-

ties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by an active quoted market price.

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Bank using available market information,

where it exists, and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, judgment is necessarily required to interpret market data

to determine the estimated fair value. The Azerbaijan Republic continues to display some characteristics of an emerging mar-

ket and economic conditions continue to limit the volume of activity in the financial markets. Market quotations may be out-

dated or reflect distress sale transactions and therefore not represent fair values of financial instruments. Management has used

all available market information in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.
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24 Management of Capital

The Bank’s objectives when managing capital are to comply with the capital requirements set by the CBA, to safeguard

the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain a sufficient capital base to achieve a capital adequacy ratio of

at least 12%. Compliance with capital adequacy ratios set by the Central Bank of Azerbaijan is monitored monthly with reports

outlining their calculation reviewed and signed by the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Accountant, Chief of Audit

Department, Head of Audit Committee and the Head of Supervisory Board. Other objectives of capital management are eval-

uated annually. 

Under the current capital requirements set by the CBA banks have to: (a) hold the minimum level of share capital of AZN

10,000,000; (b) maintain a ratio of regulatory capital to risk weighted assets (“statutory capital ratio”) at or above a prescribed

minimum of 12% and (c) maintain a ratio of tier-1 capital to the risk-weighted assets (the ëTier-1 capital ratio’) at or above the

prescribed minimum of 6%. 

Management believes that the Bank was in compliance with the statutory capital ratio throughout 2011. The calculated

positions at 31 December 2011 are set out below. 

For the CBA statutory capital adequacy purposes the amount of the cumulative capital that the Bank manages as at 31

December 2011 is AZN 13,857,263. 

The Bank calculates its capital adequacy ratio in accordance with the requirements of the Basle Accord, as defined in the

International Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standards (updated April 1998) and Amendment to the Capital

Accord to incorporate market risks (updated November 2005), commonly known as Basel I. The composition of the Bank’s

capital calculated in accordance with Basel Accord is as follows:

2011 2010

Tier 1 capital

Share capital 12,000,000 12,000,000

Total tier 1 capital 12,000,000 12,000,000

Tier 2 capital

Retained earnings 1,857,263 352,468

General provisions 244,115 124,434

Total tier 2 capital 2,101,378 476,902

Total capital 14,101,378 12,476,902
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27 Related Party Transactions

Parties are generally considered to be related if the parties are under common control or one party has the ability to control

the other party or can exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In con-

sidering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal

form. 

At 31 December 2011, the outstanding balances with at the year end and income and expense items for the year with relat-

ed parties were as follows:

in Azerbaijan Manats 31-Dec-11 31-Dec-10

Related Total category Related Total category

party as per financial party as per financial

balances statements caption balances statements caption

Loans to customers 36,073,177 13,797,355 

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity - -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent 170,759 212,074 

Allowance for impairment losses (368,549) (124,434)

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity - -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent - -

Customer accounts 27,746,831 12,265,362 

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent 835,295 656,697 

Interest income 4,219,803 886,559 

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity - -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent - 9,493 

Interest expense (1,372,359) (162,406)

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent (3,642) (32,739)

Provision for impairment losses (368,549) (124,434)

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity - -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent - -

Fee and commission income 1,613,412 565,137 

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity - -

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent - 1,098

Operating expenses (2,763,331) (677,202)

- entities with joint control or significant 

influence over the entity

- key management personnel of the entity or its parent (430,200) (181,469)
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26 Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair values of financial instruments carried at amortized cost. At 31 December 2011, fair values of financial instru-

ments carried at amortized cost are as follows:

2011 2010

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 6,391,642 6,391,642 7,691,841 7,691,841

Mandatory cash balances with the CBA 360,237 360,237 46,950 46,950

Loans and advances to customers

- Corporate loans 21,346,155 21,346,155 10,231,845 10,231,845

- Loans to individuals 14,104,267 14,104,267 3,441,076 3,441,076

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 

CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST 42,202,301 42,202,301 21,411,712 21,411,712

2011 2010

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Customer accounts

Term deposits of individual and legal entities 27,746,831 27,746,831 12,265,362 12,265,362

Other financial liabilities 11,882 11,882 19,183 19,183

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST 27,758,713 27,758,713 12,284,545 12,284,545

Management applies judgment in categorizing financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair value measure-

ment uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement. Significance of

a valuation input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

The methods and assumptions applied in determining fair values.

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing par-

ties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced by an active quoted market price. Where quoted market

prices are not available, the Bank used valuation techniques. The fair value of floating rate instruments that are not quoted in

an active market was estimated to be equal to their carrying amount. The fair value of unquoted fixed interest rate instruments

was estimated based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received discounted at current interest rates for new instru-

ments with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. 

Discount rates used depend on currency, maturity of the instrument and credit risk of the counterparty and were as follows:

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Due from other banks 

Short-term placements with other banks 2% to 14% p.a. 2% to 14% p.a.

Loans and advances to customers 

Corporate loans 10% to 24% p.a. 13% to 24% p.a.

Loans to individuals 8% to35% p.a. 15% to 35% p.a.

Customer accounts

- Term deposits of individuals 2% to 14% p.a. 7% to 14% p.a.

Other borrowed funds

- Term borrowings from companies/government agencies 2% to 14% p.a. 2% to 14% p.a.
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27 Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Key management compensation is presented below:

2011 2010

Short-term benefits – salaries and bonuses 430,200 181,469

Total 430,200 181,469

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the remuneration of members of the key management, being the members of

the Board of Directors, comprised salaries and performance related short-term bonuses amounting to AZN 430,200 (2010: AZN

181,469).

The Bank was ultimately controlled by Ms N. Mehdiyeva 75% of bank shares as of 31 December 2011.

28 Events After the Reporting Period

On 14 November 2008, a new law on “Stimulation of Increasing the Capitalization of Banks, Insurance and Reinsurance

Companies” was enacted. According to the law, the profit tax rate for banks, insurance and reinsurance companies is reduced

to 0% for three fiscal years from 1 January 2009, where all profits are retained within the business. According to the General

Meeting of the Shareholders of the Bank that was held on December 15, 2011, The bank decided to capitalize AZN 1,600,000

out of Bank’s statutory profit for the year ended 31 December 2011. The registration process was commenced late December

2011 and is expected to finish by 31 March 2012.
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